
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Agenda 

April 22, 2014 
5:15 p.m. 

Administration Boardroom 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Mission Statement 
Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient-centered care in a sustainable manner.   

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

I. ROLL CALL 

II. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
• Mayor Sanford 

 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. March 25, 2014, Regular Board of Directors meeting (Pg. 3) 
B. March 26,2014, Special Board of Directors meeting (Pg. 17) 
C. March 31, 2014, Special Board Directors meeting (Pg. 18) 

 
IV. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
 A. Board Requests for Consent Agenda Changes 
 B. Board Action 

1. Board Goals assignments – Executive Committee recommends approval (Pg. 20) 
2. Quality Council Charter – Quality Committee recommends approval (Pg. 22) 
3. Alaska Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement – Executive Committee recommends approval (Pg. 28) 
4. $52,000 Fox Lawson and Associates Agreement (Class and Compensation Study) – Finance Committee 
 recommends approval (Pg. 46) 
5. March Financials – Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 74) 
6. $27,664 Olympus OTV-S7PROH-HD-LO8E – Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 85) 
7. $24, 273 Stryker System 6 - Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 94) 
8. $164,224 McKesson PACS Architecture Project - Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 97)  
9. $67,280 NetApp Expansion Project - Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 110) 
10. $19,614 Fusion Upgrade Project - Finance Committee recommends approval (Pg. 112) 

 
VI. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

A. Items removed from consent agenda 
B. CEO Appointment  
C. 2014–2016 biennial budget – Separate document 
D. Information system selection (Pg. 115) 
 

VII. MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 A. CEO Report 
 
VIII. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 
 A. Chief of Staff Report 
 B. Credentials Committee's Recommendations (Pg. 119) 
 *** EXECUTIVE SESSION *** 
 
IX. BOARD REPORTS 
 A. President's Report 
 B. Standing Committee Reports 

• Executive Committee minutes (Pg. 122) Page 1 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



• Quality Committee minutes (Pg. 126) 
• Planning Committee minutes (Pg. 129) 
• Finance Committee minutes (Pg. 130) 

 C. Ad hoc Committee Reports  
 D. Liaisons Reports 
 
X. BOARD EDUCATION 

• Conflict of Interest Policy – Jane Sebens, CBJ Law (Pg. 134) 
 
XI. BOARD COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
XIII. ADJOURNMENT                               

Page 2 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Board of Directors Minutes 3 25 2014, 
Special Board of Directors Minutes  
 3 26 2014 & 3 31 2014 

Page 3 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 
Bartlett Regional Hospital 

Board of Directors 
Minutes 

March 25, 2014 
 

Called to order at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Roll call 
 
Present 
Kristen Bomengen, President  Bob Storer, Vice President  
Nancy Davis, Secretary  Linda Thomas, past President 
Mary Borthwick   Nate Peimann, MD 
Alex Malter, MD   Mark Johnson 
Lauree Morton 
 
Absent 
None 
 
Others present 
Jeff Egbert, CEO  Billy Gardner, CNO 
Mila Cosgrove, HR  Toni Petrie, Executive Assistant 
Karen Crane, CBJ Liaison Amy Dressel, MD, COS 
Jane Sebens, CBJ Law Alan Germany, CFO 
 
Public participation – None 
 
Ms. Cosgrove introduced the CEO candidates – David Abercrombie, Chuck Bill and wife 
Sue, Joe Cladouhos, Craig Dahl and Dr. Paul Frank. 
 
Ms. Borthwick made a MOTION to approve the minutes from the March 25, 2014. 
Nancy Davis seconded and they were approved as amended.  
 
Ms. Bomengen asked the Board to pay close attention to the action items as we move 
towards a consent agenda.  
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Executive Committee – Ms. Bomengen reports 
We received a monthly legal review report from the CBJ Legal Department that 
described the work they have reviewed for the hospital. 

Page 4 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


 
One of the highlights of the meeting was discussion regarding Property Management for 
the Juneau Medical Building.  Mr. Egbert met with Ms. Keifer to discuss CBJ managing 
the building leases, removing the hospital from the challenging position of landlord to its 
Medical Staff members. 
 
There was a Physician Employment Agreement for Dr. Pam Gruchacz presented with 
the committee promoting it to the full Board with its recommendation for approval. 
 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to approve the Physician Employment Agreement for 
Dr. Pam Gruchacz. Dr. Peimann said there was not a Schedule A to the agreement 
and he could not support approving at this time. Dr. Peimann tabled the motion 
until we had a Schedule A. Mr. Storer seconded tabling the motion without 
objection the motion was tabled.  
 
There were two amendments for excessive ER Call Coverage for Dr. Pam Gruchacz and 
Dr. Ben Miller’s initial employment agreement that was reviewed. There was a 
recommendation by Ms. Davis at the Executive Committee meeting to add under 
Subsection 5.2(n) “effective February 1, 2014”. The contracts were reviewed and signed 
off on by CBJ Legal, Risk Management and Dick Monkman.  The Executive Committee 
has recommended approval. 
 
Ms. Davis made a MOTION to approve the amendment for excessive ER Call 
Coverage for Dr. Pam Gruchacz with the amendment as presented.  Dr. Malter 
seconded the motion and it was approved.  
 
Ms. Davis made a MOTION to approve the amendment for excessive ER Call 
Coverage for Dr. Ben Miller with the amendment as presented.  Dr. Malter 
seconded the motion and it was approved.  
 
There was a Billing Services Agreement reviewed for Dr. Charles Lee, an 
anesthesiologist that will be doing some work in Juneau. The contract was reviewed and 
signed off on by CBJ Legal, Risk Management and Dick Monkman.  The Executive 
Committee has recommended approval. 
 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to approve the Charles Lee Billing agreement. Ms. 
Thomas seconded the motion and it was approved.  
 
Arthur Marshall Recruitment Agreement – Ms. Bomengen reported that this agreement 
was approved at the Executive Committee. The original agreement was for Pediatric 
recruitment, but we recently received a resignation from one of our Psychiatrists so we 
added Psychiatry recruitment to this agreement.  This motion was made subject to 
ratification by the full board. The Executive Committee has recommended approval.  
 

Page 5 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Dr. Malter made a MOTION to ratify the approval of the Arthur Marshall 
Recruitment Agreement as presented. Ms. Thomas seconded and the motion 
passed.  
 
Planning Committee report – Dr. Peimann reports 
Dr. Peimann said there were three items to move forward to the full board for 
consideration that were reviewed at the Planning Committee.  
 
Strategic Goals - A list of high level Board strategic goals was presented as a draft for 
approval. Dr. Peimann said these will be reviewed and discussed at the October Board 
retreat. Ms. Thomas asked if the Planning Committee feels these goals are achievable in 
2014. Dr. Peimann said yes they do. Dr. Peimann said he would like the Executive 
Committee to look at the formatting of the document and then to make committee 
assignments next to each goal. Mr. Egbert said these are a higher level of goals, rather 
than administrative goals.  Dr. Peimann asked the Board to think about things that aren’t 
on the list that should be, or things on the list that shouldn’t be.   
 
Mr. Storer also suggested taking this to the Executive Committee and they can make 
committee assignments, and then bring back to the full board for approval.  
 
October Board Strategic Planning retreat – There are two dates for the retreat that Dr. 
Peimann would like the Board to choose from, October 11th or the 18th. Dr. Peimann 
asked that the Mission/Vision statements on the posters be reviewed. 
 
The Planning Committee approved again posting in the boardroom the updated 
Mission/Vision statement posters, including care values.  
 
Finance Committee report – Ms. Morton reports 
There were five capital items for recommended for approval. 
 
Class and Compensation Study – Ms. Cosgrove brought back an estimated cost to the 
Finance Committee and she’s checking to see if it needs to go through the RFP process.  
She will bring information back to the Board once she has received it.  
 
The February financial statements were reviewed.  
 
Excess of revenues over expenses for the month of February 2014 was $370,129 which 
was $247,066 better than the budget of $123,063. 
 
February’s performance brings the year to date actual to $4,859,595 which exceeds the 
budget of $1,986,936 by $2,872,659 or 145%. 
 
Total gross patient revenue for the month was $268,336 better than budget and is within 
.1% of budget on a year to date basis. Although volumes earlier in the year have been 

Page 6 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



below historical levels, February inpatient volume increased, especially in the Mental 
Health unit. 
 
Deductions from revenue for February are under budget and prior year. For the year 
thus far, deductions from revenue are $1.7 MM under budget, primarily due to cost 
report settlements received earlier in the fiscal year. Bad debt expense is trending 
significantly under budget for the month and year to date. 
 
Other Operating Revenue for the month is under budget by $21,472, primarily due to the 
loss of the Wildflower Court food service contract. For the year, Other Operating 
Revenue is $1.1 MM over budget due to the receipt of an Electronic Health Record 
incentive of $898,281 in December. This payment was the result of Stage 1 Meaningful 
Use Attestation. 
 
Total Expenses were right at budget for the month and slightly under budget for the year. 
Notable negative variances were: 
 Salaries and Benefits were $9,257 (.2%) over budget. 
 While Fees – Other as a category is under budget by $25,989, this includes the 

account Contract Employees, which is over budget by $43,380.  
 Supplies expense continues to trend under budget due to the lower patient 

volumes and effective control of the supply spend. Supply expense in total was 
under budget by $126,058 in February. A significant line item which is under 
budget is Drugs/Pharmacy cost which is $83,196 under budget which is due to 
more effective  

 utilization of the GPO and also 340B pricing. Food cost also has begun to trend 
 under  budget with the discontinuance of the Wildflower Court contract. Food 
 cost was under budget by $26,469 in February. 
 Utilities are over budget by $4,839 with $2,841 of the variance in Electricity. Total  

 Utilities are within 0.5% of budget for the year. 
 Rentals & Leases are over budget by $18,493 for the month. This includes a 

negative variance of $13,581 in equipment rentals. 
 Depreciation is over budget $71,376 as the FY14 budget did not include 

additional depreciation for projects placed in service at or soon after the end of 
FY13. 

 Interest expense is $56,271 over budget as the FY14 interest expense related to 
the Bond Defeasance was not known in time for inclusion in the budget. This 
monthly variance will continue through June, 2014. 

 Other expenses for the month are $61,703 over budget which includes a 
negative variance of $24,760 in “Reimbursable Costs”. Operating cash was 
$19,520,371 as of February 28, 2014 and Days Cash on Hand was 165. Net A/R 
Days was 79. 

 
Dr. Peimann noted that on the capital purchases list for the current fiscal year we have 
so far not spent much of what was budgeted and asked if we planned on purchasing the 
remaining items. Mr. Egbert said there are some items that will be taken off the list due 

Page 7 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



to changing priorities.  Mr. Egbert said there are items that were approved in a budget 
that haven't been purchased that would take a good amount of that money.  
 
Ms. Morton made a motion to approve the February financials. Ms. Borthwick 
seconded and they were approved.  
 
Anesthesia Ventilators – Mr. Gardner reports 
These anesthesia ventilators are used to put patients to sleep and monitor them. No 
surgeries can be performed without them. We have two older models of these machines 
that are now obsolete. They are no longer supported with replacement parts. One of 
these two is now down and we will not be able to do any emergency C-sections when 
the other one goes down. This purchase was been approved already last year by the 
Board, but were not purchased. We are purchasing two new ventilators. Anesthesia has 
requested that one of the machines be MRI compatible.  The cost is $100,193.80 for the 
machines. 
 
Ms. Thomas made a MOTION to approve the Anesthesia Ventilators not to exceed 
$100,200. Dr. Malter seconded the motion and the motion passed by a roll call 
vote. 
 
Philips Monitors – These monitors are used post—operatively in short stay.  They are a 
critical piece of equipment for direct patient care. They are used for recovery. We are 
purchasing 15 total, two for the recovery room and 13 for short stay. This purchase was 
also approved last year by the Board, but not purchased. We have closed two rooms for 
monitor failures. The ones we have now are no longer supported and cannot be 
repaired. The cost is $197,687.80. This purchase includes a three year information 
technology service agreement. 
 
Mr. Storer made a MOTION to approve the Philips Monitors. Dr. Malter seconded. 
Ms. Thomas made a friendly amendment that the purchase  not exceed $197,700.  
Mr. Storer accepted the amendment and the motion passed by a roll call vote. 
 
V-Pro Max Sterilizer – The V-Pro Max is a sterilizer that uses vaporized Hydrogen 
Peroxide to sterilize instrumentation such as scopes, camera heads, light cords, and 
other instrumentation that cannot be put through a steam sterilizer. This system also has 
the capability of sterilizing our flexible scopes with small lumens. The V-Pro Max is more 
expensive upfront; however, it is a better quality product and does have the capability of 
sterilizing small scopes. The service contract for the V-Pro Max is $9,000.00 compared 
to $13,000.00 for the Sterrad NX for three years. The cost of the machine is 
$138,120.70, this includes installation of the machine and removal of the old machine. 
The original amount approved last year was $115,000.  
 
Dr. Peimann asked if the savings were annualized or for the life of the machine. Mr. 
Egbert said this is an annual savings of operating due to the decrease of the other 
agents.  

Page 8 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
Ms. Thomas made a MOTION to approve the V-Pro Max not to exceed $138,200.00. 
Dr. Peimann seconded. Ms. Borthwick asked if the $9,000 was included. Mr. Egbert 
said it was not included because it’s not a capital expense.  Ms. Borthwick also asked 
what the life of the machine is.  They last approximately 15-20 years. The motion 
passed by a roll call vote. 
 
There were two unbudgeted items for approval – Mr. Gardner reports 
Integra Ultra 360 Patient Positioning System and Mayfield Swivel Horseshoe Headrest.  
This system is used during cervical spine surgeries for positioning the head and neck 
safely.  Without the system we cannot safely do cervical spine surgeries.  The one 
owned by BRH has been broken for a couple of months and cannot be repaired.  We 
have a loaner system from Integra and they have called to have it returned.  The cost of 
the system is $13,526.00, this includes any training on the new system from the 
representative from Integra. 

The other item is Synthes 4.0 Cannulated Screw Set. The 4.0 cannulated screw set is 
used by orthopedic surgeons to repair broken bones in the arms and legs.  BRH 
currently does not own one and has a loaner set from Synthes.  Other facilities are 
requesting the use of this set and Synthes is asking for it to be returned.  If we return this 
set before purchasing one it could have an effect on the types of orthopedic surgeries 
we will be able to do and may lead to cancellation of some cases due to lack of 
instrumentation and implants. The purchase of the set qualifies for a set promo.  With 
the purchase of the implants for the set, the instrumentation is provided at no charge. A 
cost savings of $5,075.40.  The cost of the entire set is $18,691.20 minus the savings of 
$5,075.40 for a cost of $13,615.80.  This set is frequently used during orthopedic 
surgeries and will pay for itself quickly.  BRH could start to incur a rental fee for this set if 
it is not returned to Synthes. 
 
There was a tradeoff of pediatric scopes to get equipment to do spine surgeries. We 
have a loaner system currently and they want it back if we don’t purchase. It costs 
$13,615.80.  Dr. Peimann asked if Dr. Bozarth approved of this item. Mr. Gardner said 
yes.  Ms. Thomas said there was a brief discussion if this needed to come to the Board 
for approval due to the dollar amount. 
 
Ms. Thomas made a MOTION to approve the Integra Ultra 360 Patient Positioning 
System and Mayfield Swivel Horseshoe Headrest and the Synthes 4.0 Cannulated 
Screw Set for the purchase price of $13,526.00.  Ms. Davis seconded and it was 
approved by a roll call vote. 
 
2014-2016 Biennial Budget progress update – Mr. Germany reported that his team has 
been meeting with the department directors this week. They have been getting input 
from the directors and reviewed the reports so the numbers are accurate. Part of it is 
getting up to speed on the way we do operations here and possibly looking at doing 
things in a different way.  

Page 9 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
Mr. Germany said in going forward as part of the financial report, to start including a 
payor mix report as part of the financials, splitting between inpatient and outpatient. Ms. 
Thomas said she thinks it would be good for the Board before the finance Committee to 
understand the high level assumptions that we are targeting at this point.  
 
There was a high level of budget assumptions for FY15 reviewed. Mr. Germany said 
he’s not anticipating a big change in payor mix from a business perspective. 
 
Mr. Germany said he will be bringing back some different scenarios regarding the rate 
increase 3%, 4% and 5% analysis. Ms. Thomas asked Mr. Germany to explain the 
rationale behind a 5% increase.  Mr. Germany directed the Board to look at the cost 
comparisons data that was provided in the packet, between Bartlett Regional Hospital, 
Alaska Mat-SU, Virgina Mason and Swedish Medical Center.  Most hospitals do raise 
their rates every year to account for wage increases and inflation. It’s specifically written 
in the AETNA contract that up to that point of a 5% rate increase, they will leave the 
reimbursement mechanisms alone.  
 
Ms. Thomas said the reason she is asking for the explanation is because our board over 
the last couple of years have done a good job at controlling the rate increases and we 
need to understand why management originally recommended the 5% increase.  
 
Mr. Egbert said BRH compared to other hospitals up North and some in Seattle, we are 
very similar. There is one hospital in Seattle that is less expensive, but they don’t 
negotiate their rates.  From our standpoint, those charges that we currently have, have 
room to remain competitive, without overcharging our community if we do it in the correct 
way. We don’t want to raise rates on outpatient procedures since we tend to compete 
with Seattle. There’s room on our inpatient procedures that remain in the area.  Where 
we were leaving money on the table was with regard to our cost based reimbursement 
programs.  We left about $160,000 in costs that we could have improved and been 
reimbursed through the sole community provider payment scheme or under our current 
demonstration project with CMS.  The other thing we talked about was the day’s cash on 
hand. We are 165 and that’s great, but with ICD-10 coming, we need to have more days 
cash on hand, especially if the implementation doesn’t go well. We are looking at rate 
increases for employees, increases that will be passed on to us for supplies from our 
vendors, and shipping costs aren’t going down.  Our costs as an entity are going up and 
we need to be able to balance that to make sure the cash flow continues the coverage of 
operations.  
 
Ms. Thomas said even though we are doing reasonably well on our bottom line for this 
year, there are recurring and nonrecurring reimbursements that are going away that are 
fairly large dollar amounts. Mr. Germany has indicated he will provide the Board a better 
break down at the budget presentation.  
 
Dr. Malter reiterated Ms. Thomas’s point that management did an excellent job at 
speaking to the 5% rate increase. He encouraged all board members to attend the next 

Page 10 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



couple of Finance Committee meetings, as this will be discussed in more detail.  He 
asked management to go back and look at lower rate increases and see what it would 
do to the budget. He’s heard a lot over the years from the community about how 
expensive our rates are and we should at least see what the lower rates look like in the 
budget.  
 
Ms. Davis said the perception is that BRH rates are high, she was struck at looking at 
the comparisons, how low Bartlett’s rates were compared to other places in the state. 
We are very similar and maybe it’s because the community doesn’t understand how the 
costs work. The hospital and the Board can do better at educating the community how 
the costs work here.  
 
Dr. Peimann said we should be more forward about our costs and we should also be 
more forward about the explanation of that cost, what they get for that service and what 
it means to be a community hospital.   
 
Mr. Egbert said a good discussion to have at the Board’s retreat is how to work with the 
larger medical community. All that was reviewed at the Finance Committee was hospital 
charges compared to other hospitals. Healthcare in Juneau is very expensive, but the 
hospital is only one piece of it.  When a patient comes to the hospital and has a 
colonoscopy, we have the hospital’s charges, but then there are other charges by 
doctors, anesthesiologists, etc. All of those bills come out to the patient and the 
insurance company outside of what gets submitted by BRH. To be able to compete 
effectively for the outpatient services going to Seattle, we are going to have to get a 
relationship put together with our medical staff on pricing. That’s something to explore 
over the next couple of years.  
 
Ms. Crane asked while we look at the price increases, we also look at some of the 
community organizations that we work with as well. She thinks about JAMHI and what a 
5% increase does to them who are getting less federal money and being squeezed in 
other ways as well.  That 5% increase for them means less service for people in Juneau. 
She knows we need to charge what it costs to provide service, but she would really like 
us to look at some of those organizations to see if there isn’t something we can do to 
help soften the blow for them.   Mr. Egbert said he agreed and he’s been working on 
how to help support the Front Street Clinic. As a community hospital, we need to be very 
sensitive to those relationships.  
 
Quality Council – Ms. Davis reported that the first Quality Council Summit was held on 
March 12th.  It was a great opportunity hearing from the directors on how to improve 
patient care and patient safety. There’s a quality council folder in Egnyte if board 
members would like to look at that information.  They looked at falls and there is an 
increase. This has caused the staff on Med/Surg to ramp up and look at better ways to 
prevent falls. We want to be less than the national average for falls. One of the 
suggestions is looking at it as an aggregate. It’s not just patient falls. They are going to 
start sorting that out so we as an organization can look at that aspect. The HCAPS 

Page 11 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



scores that are reported, out of all of them, all but one went up. Ms. Davis encouraged 
the Board to come to the Quality Council meeting. Mr. Egbert said they are going to start 
asking front line staff to attend this meeting.  
 
Ms. Bomengen encouraged the Board members to attend the Quality Council meetings 
whenever they can.   
 
Dr. Pam Gruchacz’ s Physician Employment Agreement – this motion was tabled earlier 
in the meeting as there was a missing schedule A that shows what schedule Dr. Pam 
Gruchacz will be working. She will not be getting paid for excessive call after July 1, 
2014.  Dr. Malter asked if there are concerns with doing 4 straight days of call. Currently 
they are doing more than 4 days a week. Dr. Peimann asked if we could go into 
executive session to discuss items that could have an adverse effect on the finances of 
the hospital with regards to this agreement.   
 
Ms. Thomas made a MOTION at 6:35 p.m. to go into executive session to discuss 
matters that are confidential by law and could have an adverse effect on finances 
of the hospital. Dr. Malter seconded and it was approved.  
 
Chief of Staff report – Dr. Dressel addressed the credentialing report 
 
Back in session at 6:58 p.m. The Chief of Staff report was discussed as well as Dr. Pam 
Gruchacz’s Physician Employment Agreement.  
 
Ms. Davis made a MOTION to approve the credentialing report. Dr. Peimann 
seconded and it was approved.  
 
Dr. Malter made a MOTION to approve the Physician Employment Agreement for 
Dr. Pam Gruchacz. Mr. Storer seconded.  Dr. Peimann objected. The motion 
passed by 8-1 roll call vote. 
 
CEO selection committee – Ms. Thomas said we have selected five candidates as 
finalists. There will be an executive session at the end of tonight’s meeting to discuss the 
interview process. The interviews and other activities will begin at 8:00 a.m. Wednesday, 
March 26th, and will last all day.  
 
IT Steering Committee – Mr. Egbert said we reassembled the IT Steering Committee 
and had a great discussion.  There was not a lot of physician participation at the 
meeting.  Mr. Egbert made a recommendation to not replace the ER component and 
keep the T-Systems.  We were able to move into the discussions for the needs of the 
hospital more broadly.  Mr. Egbert will bring Keith Ryan, Cornerstone Advisors, next 
week to talk to the medical staff.  In the future CPOE has to be adopted. It’s a matter of 
which direction we want to go, Meditech Magic upgrade or Meditech 6.x. He hopes after 
meeting with the Medical Staff to come back to the Board and call the questions.  Dr. 
Peimann said the other thing the Medical staff needs to understand is that is even if we 

Page 12 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



just adopt Meditech Magic with CPOE, this is a short term plan. Down the road we are 
kicking the can of adoption of an EMR system down the road three to five years.  As 
CMS goes further down this regulatory cycle, they are going to add more and more 
important meaningful changes to what the EMR delivers for them and for our 
reimbursement. As that happens and Magic is no longer supported and those updates 
are no longer available, we are going to be forced to move to a system that does provide 
us that meaningful interface. Physicians need to know that sticking with Magic will mean 
two changes within the next 5-10 years as opposed to adopting a new system now and 
having one change in the next 5-10 years. 
 
Ms. Davis said all of the staff who were in attendance were so ready for us to move 
forward. They are very ready for an improvement.  Dr. Malter asked if we were 
anticipating a big push back from the Medical Staff. Dr. Dressel said everyone is very 
negative when it gets brought up.  
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
Cerner Recovery Update - Mr. Egbert said that CBJ Law and Dick Monkman, Alan 
Germany, Jeff Egbert and Martha Palicka had a meeting and went over the 
documentation regarding Cerner. Mr. Egbert said he would bring back some information 
to the Board next month.  
 
Front Street Clinic – Mr. Egbert said this topic was brought up at the Bartlett Foundation 
meeting. Mr. Egbert wanted to make sure the Board knew how BRH is helping support 
the Front Street Clinic thus far. We have not offered financial assistance to them, but we 
have offered to provide a certain number of MRI’s, CT’s and lab work to patients to 
support their efforts. The Foundation asked what the hospital would like as a focus for a 
fundraiser. One suggestion was to identify a project that could also assist the clinic. 
 
Dr. Peimann said he supports the idea that we give the Front Street Clinic some support 
in a limited fashion and to describe to them very distinctly, if possible what those limits 
and circumstances are. Front Street Clinic is a full medical clinic, taking both insured and 
uninsured patients. They will be competing with other clinics in town for those same 
patients. If they can offer free services to those patients, it’s probably not a competitive 
advantage we want to find ourselves in.  Mr. Egbert said when we talked about providing 
free MRI’s, CT’s and lab work, we will bill the insured patients ourselves. We will not be 
giving those services to the patients for the clinic to then bill themselves.  
 
Dr. Malter said he’s supportive of the patients using the clinic; it doesn’t make sense to 
describe supporting the clinic, but supporting the providers. We are facilitating referrals 
for certain procedures. If they can demonstrate to the community that there is 
partnership with BRH, they have a stronger position to request funding.  
 
Ms. Davis said the word partnership is really important because BRH has participated in 
the medical respite approach when people can’t go back on the street because they are 
too ill. We have been a partner on behalf of Juneau’s homeless population for a couple 

Page 13 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



of years now.  When she thinks about a partnership, she thinks it’s a partnership for a 
vulnerable population in our community.  
 
Dr. Peimann said he certainly supports the Front Street Clinic’s mission. They made a 
recent announcement that they changed their name.   
 
Dr. Malter asked if we have to rationalize why we would support uninsured patients who 
are being seen and private clinics about why we would subsidize or support patients 
using the Front Street Clinic as opposed uninsured patients to using other clinics in the 
community.  
 
BRH Foundation – Mr. Egbert reports 
There were two final candidates for an Executive Director. They did an email vote and 
we haven’t heard the final results.  
 
CEO Report – Mr. Egbert reports 
Mr. Egbert went over the current Organizational Chart as part of the Board Education 
Plan. Mr. Egbert announced he recently moved the Case Management department back 
to the CFO.  Ms. Borthwick said she sees two positions without names and asked if they 
were not filled at this time. Mr. Egbert said there was a change in those two positions 
(HIM and PFS) and they are reporting directly to our interim Revenue Cycle Director, 
Mike Dumont, but this is subject to change. The last administration made a change to 
not have a director over those two departments, but Mr. Egbert and Mr. Germany are 
looking at restructuring in some areas.  
 
Ms. Davis said it seems like recently there was talk about the Case Management 
department being involved in the record auditing and reviewed in Quality and how they 
connect. Mr. Egbert said it was a great vision, but it’s not working well.  The goal is to fill 
the position of an abstractor. 
 
Legislative update – There were two handouts from ASHNHA included in the packet.  
Mr. Egbert said there has been a lot of participation at the legislature by Dr. 
Pappenheim, Jennifer Brown (Director of MHU & RRC), and Billy Gardner, representing 
us with budget negotiations regarding the reductions, sometimes severe, of mental 
health funding for inpatient mental health as well as substance abuse. It sounds like the 
funding when it comes back to the senate, maybe close to being restored. Mr. Gardner 
said the indications from the Senate is it will survive.  
 
Ms. Crane said another thing we need to be aware of is we currently have approximately 
12 billion dollar unfunded liability for PERS (Alaska Public Employees' Retirement) and 

TRS (Teachers' Retirement System) and the governor proposed this year a 3 billion 
dollar deposit from the reserve account into PERS and TRS.  It will require a 3/4 vote by 
both the House and the Senate for this to go through. One reason they are doing this is 
that municipalities pay 22% for PERS and TRS, and the state pays everything above 
that. The state amount has been going up. This year it’s supposed to be $600+ million 

Page 14 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



dollars, next year, $760+ million and in just a few years we will go to $1.2 billion dollars a 
year. The Governors deposit would limit the state’s amount on an annual basis to $500 
million dollars a year. It would limit what the state is doing and it would extend out what 
municipalities are paying. Unfortunately, neither the House nor the Senate have included 
this in the state budget. They are now talking about reducing the amount of the deposit 
into PERS and TRS (rumor at this point), a billion 2 or a billion 4 or something like that, 
but what they are also talking about is raising the PERS amount what we have to pay 
from 22% to 24%. What that would mean for Juneau for the municipal budget, but she 
doesn’t it includes Bartlett, is an additional $1.5 million a year. They are working very 
hard to see this doesn’t happen, but we should be aware of this. The Alaska Municipal 
League and the City are working on it. 
 
Mr. Storer asked Ms. Crane what committee this is in. Ms. Crane said the Governor 
included it in the budget, both the House and the Senate have taken it out of the budget 
at this point. There are a couple of other bills floating around that they can attach. We 
are expecting some form of proposal in a week to ten days.  
 
Mr. Johnson received a call that the Senate was going to put in a claim for the trauma 
fund which is half of what the Hospital Association was requesting. He’s also done some 
additional research alternative funding that he can present to the Finance Committee.  
 
Dr. Malter said the Planning Committee is going to start addressing oncology services 
and wanted to know if there’s anything the Board should be thinking about more quickly 
to come up with a plan. Mr. Egbert said The Midnight Sun Oncology Group has applied 
for hospital privileges and they will be working out of the Southeast Oncology Center a 
few times a month whereas we only offer oncology services once a month.  Mr. Egbert 
will be meeting with some key stakeholders from Virginia Mason to explore oncology 
services. We are going to continue to have our chemotherapy center remain in the 
hospital.   
 
President’s report – Ms. Bomengen reports 
Ms. Bomengen said we heard from Barbara Sheinberg at last month’s board meeting 
asking us to get involved in looking at the health care in Juneau for the Juneau 
Economic Development Plan.  Ms. Sheinberg developed four questions that Ms. 
Bomengen forwarded to the Board members. She asked if hospital staff and board 
members would like to get together sometime in April or the beginning of May.  Ms. 
Bomengen asked the Board to go to the site to sign up. April 3rd there will be a meeting 
to talk about the overall plan. Ms. Thomas said she would attend.  
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
The April calendar was reviewed. 
 
There was a special Finance Committee meeting scheduled for April 3rd at 5:15 p.m. to 
go over the budget. There was also a special Board meeting scheduled for March 31st at 
5:15 p.m., to discuss the CEO Selection process.  

Page 15 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
BOARD COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Borthwick reminded the Board to start thinking about reviewing the bylaws for 2015.   
 
Ms. Morton wanted to let the Board know that the Sexual Assault Response Team 
training is ongoing on this week. There a lot of nurses in attendance. There are 60 
people from all over Southeast Alaska including Juneau in attendance. It’s been very 
well received. Ms. Morton thanked the Bartlett Foundation for their efforts to help fund 
this.  
 
Dr. Malter made a MOTION to go into executive session at 7:45 p.m., to discuss 
items which are confidential by law and could have an adverse effect on the 
finances of the hospital. Ms. Davis seconded and it was approved.  
 
The Board came out of executive session at 8:15 p.m. to extend the meeting to 8:45 
p.m. 
 
The Board came out of executive session at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.  
 
 

Page 16 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 
Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Special Board of Directors 

Minutes 
March 26, 2014 

 
Called to order at 8:00 a.m. 
 
Present 
Kristen Bomengen, President  Bob Storer, Vice President  
Nancy Davis, Secretary  Linda Thomas, past President 
Mary Borthwick   Nate Peimann, MD 
Alex Malter, MD   Mark Johnson 
Lauree Morton 
 
Absent 
None 
 
Others present 
Jeff Egbert, CEO   Mila Cosgrove, HR Director    
 
The Board convened at 8:00 a.m., to interview five candidates for the Chief Executive 
Officer position at Bartlett Regional Hospital. 
 
The Board went into executive session to conduct the interviews for the following 
CEO candidates.  
 

1. Paul Franke, MD 
2. Joe Cladhouos 
3. Davis Abercrombie 
4. Chuck Bill 
5. Craig Dahl 

 
Meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m.  
 
 

Page 17 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 
Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Special Board of Directors  

Meeting minutes  
March 31, 2014 

 
Called to order at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Roll call 
 
Present 
Kristen Bomengen, President  Bob Storer, Vice President  
Nancy Davis, Secretary  Linda Thomas, past President 
Mary Borthwick   Nate Peimann, MD 
Alex Malter, MD   Mark Johnson 
Lauree Morton 
 
Absent 
None 
 
Others present 
Mila Cosgrove, HR Director  Toni Petrie, Executive Assistant 
 
Ms. Bomengen said there have been questions raised about votes when there is 
concern about personal or financial interest in the CEO candidates.  
 
Based on that information, Ms. Bomengen contacted the Department of Law and the 
code said we cannot act or take part in the deliberations or vote on anything which we 
have a personal and financial interest.  
 
Ms. Bomengen said we should look at it as we are obligated to vote and participate as 
much as possible. Ms. Bomengen encouraged anyone that has questions pertaining to a 
conflict, to contact the Department of Law for a consult and it would be strictly 
confidential.   
 
Ms. Thomas said for the record, she serves on a board with one of the candidates at 
Alaska Pacific Bank, but has no financial or personal interest with this party. Ms. Thomas 
said she also consulted with the Department of Law.   
 

Page 18 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


Ms. Morton made a MOTION to go into executive session at 5:23 p.m., to discuss 
matters which are confidential by law and could have an adverse effect on the 
finances of the hospital. Ms. Davis seconded and it was approved.  

Page 19 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Board of Directors Strategic Goals 

Page 20 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Bartlett Regional Hospital provides its community with quality, patient centered care in a sustainable manner. 

Goal Objectives
Board 
Committee Priorities SLT Member When Measured By Directors

Recruit and Hire a 
permanent CEO

Full Board 

Select Hosptial future IT 
platform

Full Board

Hospital Compliance 
Program

Monitor successful transition of 
Compliance Program 

Finance

Review and approve annual 
Compliance Work Plan

Finance

Update and adopt a 3-year 
strategic plan 

Updated demographic and 
competetive analysis 

Planning

Community needs assessment Planning

Financial Planning 3 year financial projection 3 year 
capital budget plan

Finance

Updated Medical Staff 
Development Plan

Planning

Information System 
Development Plan

IT Department structure and 
stability

Planning

Meaningful Use 
requirements/deadlines and 
penalties

Planning

Mental Health Services Inpatient mental health unit Planning
RRC Planning
Bartlett Outpatient Psychiatry 
Services

Planning

Feasibility analysis and 
recommendations for CAMHU

Planning

Medical Surgical Services Feasibility analysis for 
Hospitalist's programming 
options a)employed model 
b)contracted model

Planning

Emergency Services Feasibility analysis of Level III 
Trauma Designation

Planning

Oncology Services Explore tertiary affiliaiton/co-
branding opportunities

Planning

Community needs assessment Planning

In-hospital hospice services Planning

Page 21 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Quality Council Charter 

Page 22 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Board Quality Council Charter 
 
Scope 
The Board Quality Council is responsible for assisting the board in overseeing 
and ensuring the quality of clinical care, patient safety, and customer service 
provided throughout the organization.  
 
Responsibilities  
• Reviewing and recommending multi-year Strategic Quality Goals with long-

term and annual improvement targets 
• Reviewing and recommending quality/safety-related policies and standards. 
• Approving and monitoring a dashboard of key performance indicators 

compared to organizational goals and industry benchmarks.  Report in 
summary fashion to the full Board. 

• Reviewing sentinel and significant events and recommending corrective 
action, as appropriate. 

• Monitoring summary reports of hospital and medical staff quality and patient 
safety activities. 

• Overseeing compliance with quality- and safety-related accreditation 
standards and regulations. 

• Making recommendations to the Board on all matters related to the quality of 
care, patient safety, customer service, and organizational culture. 

 
Meetings 
The committee usually meets monthly, but meets at least ten times per year, or 
when necessary at the call of the committee chair.  Meeting schedules include a 
quarterly quality summit.  Meeting dates at time should be specified a year in 
advance. 
 
Membership 
The Board Quality Council will be comprised of at least two members of the 
Board of Directors, members of Senior Leadership (including CEO, CFO, CNO, 
and HR Director), representatives of Quality Management (including Quality 
Director and Risk Manager), representatives of hospital leadership (including 
Education Director, Safety Officer, Pharmacy Director, Ancillary Services 
representative), representatives of hospital staff (including Union representation 
and Nursing representation), and representatives of the medical staff.   
 
Matters requiring action of the Council will include the votes of all established 
members, as above.  Matters requiring action of the Board will be forwarded to 
the Board of Directors. 
 
Other members will be invited to attend on an ad hoc basis as scheduled 
reports or committee discussions require.  
 
The Chair of the Committee will be appointed by the President of the Board of 
Directors.   

Page 23 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
Confidentiality / Executive Sessions 
The rules governing Executive Sessions for the Board of Directors will apply to 
this Council (see Attachment A, Board of Director Bylaws, Executive Sessions).  
Members of the public will be required to leave during Executive Sessions, and 
as determined by the Council Chair, non-Board members of the Council may be 
required to leave during Executive Sessions. 
 
The rules governing protected health information (PHI) will apply to this Council.  
Patient-specific information will be kept confidential and in compliance with 
HIPAA regulations.  Discussions which require disclosure of PHI will be closed 
to the public.  Members of the Council are responsible to keep all PHI 
confidential. 
 
The Board Quality Council may, as occasion requires, function as a review 
organization under AS.18.23.030 and AS.18.23.070 (see Attachment B).  When 
acting as a review organization, discussions will be closed to the public.  Only 
Board members, health care providers, and hospital staff who are established 
members of the Council may participate in discussions as members of the 
review organization, and are subject to misdemeanor penalties for disclosure of 
protected information.  
 
Reports 
The committee will report to the Board of Directors at least quarterly, including 
an in-depth annual quality review.  Regular reports will include (at an 
appropriate frequency as new information is available): 

• Quality indicators in dashboard format 
• Progress on major performance improvements and patient safety goals 
• Sentinel or significant events 
• Patient satisfaction 
• Accreditation  

 
Annual Committee Goals 
The Committee is charged with developing goals annually. 
 

Page 24 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Attachment A 
CBJ Boards, Committees & Commissions Informational Pamphlet 

XII. Open Meetings and Executive Sessions 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSIONS: 
 
There are certain rare times when an advisory board may need to go into executive session.  
The allowable reasons for an executive session are:  matters that would clearly have an 
immediate adverse impact on the finances of the CBJ; subjects that tend to prejudice the 
reputation and character of any person, provided the person to be discussed must be notified 
and may request a public discussion; and matters that are required to be confidential by law, 
Charter, or ordinance.  The appeal boards when serving in a quasi-judicial capacity may go into 
executive session to discuss evidence or a decision in an adjudicatory proceeding.  Except for 
appeal boards, no official vote or action may be taken in executive session.  
 
The proper procedure for calling an executive session is as follows: 

1) Make a motion in the public meeting for an executive session for one of the purposes 
stated above (only); 

2) Allow for public comment on the appropriateness of the board going into executive 
session; 

3) If a majority of the board approves the motion, the board will adjourn into executive 
session; and  

4) At the end of the executive session, the board reconvenes in public session to vote or 
explain the nature of items discussed. 

 
When taking minutes, it is important to record with specificity the motion and reason for 
executive session as referenced in step 1 above, and the final action taken in step 4 above.  
“The motion to convene in executive session must clearly and with specificity describe 
the subject of the proposed executive session without defeating the purpose of 
addressing the subject in private.  Subjects may not be considered at the executive 
session except those mentioned in the motion calling for the executive session unless 
auxiliary to the main question.” (OMA) 

Page 25 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Attachment B 
Alaska Statute 18.23 

 
Alaska Statute 18.23 – Protections for Review Organizations 

 
AS 18.23.005. Patient Access to Records: 
Notwithstanding the provisions of AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070 or any other law, a patient is entitled to inspect 

and copy any records developed or maintained by a health care provider or other person pertaining 
to the health care rendered to the patient.  

Sec. 18.23.010.  Limitation for persons providing information to review organization: 
(a) A person providing information to a review organization is not subject to action for damages or 
other relief by reason of having furnished that information, unless the information is false and the 
person providing the information knew or had reason to know the information was false.  
(b) A privilege of confidentiality arising from a physician- patient relationship may not be invoked to 
withhold pertinent information from review by a review organization.  

Sec.  18.23.020.   Limitation on liability for members of review organizations: 
A person who is a member or employee of, or who acts in an advisory capacity to, or who furnishes 

counsel or services to a review organization is not liable for damages or other relief in an action 
brought by another whose activities have been or are being scrutinized or reviewed by a review 
organization, by reason of the performance of a duty, function, or activity of the review organization, 
unless the performance of the duty, function, or activity was motivated by malice toward the affected 
person. A person is not liable for damages or other relief in an action by reason of performance of a 
duty, function, or activity as a member of a review organization or by reason of a recommendation 
or action of the review organization when the person acts in the reasonable belief that the action or 
recommendation is warranted by facts known to the person or to the review organization after 
reasonable efforts to ascertain the facts upon which the review organization's action or 
recommendation is made 

SEC. 18.23.030.  Confidentiality of records of review organization: 
(a) Except as provided in (b) of this section, all data and information acquired by a review organization, in 

the exercise of its duties and functions, shall be held in confidence and may not be disclosed to 
anyone except to the extent necessary to carry out the purposes of the review organization, and is 
not subject to subpoena or discovery. Except as provided in (b) of this section, a person described 
in AS 18.23.020 may not disclose what transpired at a meeting of a review organization except to 
the extent necessary to carry out the purposes of a review organization, and the proceedings and 
records of a review organization are not subject to discovery or introduction into evidence in a civil 
action against a health care provider arising out of the matter that is the subject of consideration by 
the review organization. Information, documents, or records otherwise available from original 
sources are not immune from discovery or use in a civil action merely because they were presented 
during proceedings of a review organization, nor may a person who testified before a review 
organization or who is a member of it be prevented from testifying as to matters within the person's 
knowledge, but a witness may not be asked about the witness's testimony before a review 
organization or opinions formed by the witness as a result of its hearings, except as provided in (b) 
of this section.  

(b) Testimony, documents, proceedings, records, and other evidence adduced before a review 
organization that are otherwise inaccessible under this section may be obtained by a health care 
provider who claims that denial is unreasonable, or may be obtained under subpoena or discovery 
proceedings brought by a plaintiff who claims that information provided to a review organization was 
false and claims that the person providing the information knew or had reason to know the 
information was false.  

(c) Nothing in AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070 prevents a person whose conduct or competence has been 
reviewed under AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070 from obtaining, for the purpose of appellate review of the 
action of the review organization, any testimony, documents, proceedings, records, and other 
evidence adduced before the review organization.  

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of (b) and (c) of this section, information contained in a report submitted 
to the State Medical Board, and information gathered by the board during an investigation, under 
AS 08.64.336 is not subject to subpoena or discovery unless and until the board takes action to 
suspend, revoke, limit, or condition a license of the person who is the subject of the report or 
investigation.  

AS 18.23.040. Penalty for Violation 
Other than as authorized by AS 18.23.030, a disclosure of data and information acquired by a review 

committee or of what transpired at a review meeting is a misdemeanor and punishable by 
imprisonment for not more than one year or by a fine of not more than $500.  

Page 26 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



AS 18.23.050. Protection of Patient 
Nothing in AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070 relieves a person of liability that the person has incurred or may incur 

to a person as a result of furnishing health care to the patient.  
AS 18.23.060. Parties Bound By Review. 
When a review organization reviews matters under AS 18.23.070(5)(A)(viii) a party is not bound by a ruling 

of the organization in a controversy, dispute, or question unless the party agrees in advance, either 
specifically or generally, to be bound by the ruling.  

AS 18.23.070. Definitions For AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070 
In AS 18.23.005 - 18.23.070, unless the context otherwise requires,  

(1) "Administrative staff" means the staff of a hospital or clinic;  
(2) "Health care" means professional services rendered by a health care provider or an employee of 

a health care provider, and services furnished by a sanatorium, rest home, nursing home, 
boarding home, or other institution for the hospitalization or care of human beings;  

 (3) "Health care provider" means an acupuncturist licensed under AS 08.06; a chiropractor licensed 
under AS 08.20; a dental hygienist licensed under AS 08.32; a dentist licensed under AS 08.36; a 
nurse licensed under AS 08.68; a dispensing optician licensed under AS 08.71; an optometrist 
licensed under AS 08.72; a pharmacist licensed under AS 08.80; a physical therapist or 
occupational therapist licensed under AS 08.84; a physician  licensed under AS 08.64; a 
podiatrist; a psychologist and a psychological associate licensed under AS 08.86; a hospital as 
defined in AS 18.20.130, including a governmentally owned or operated hospital; and an employee 
of a health care provider acting within the course and scope of employment;  

 (4) "Professional service" means service rendered by a health care provider of the type the 
 provider is licensed to render;  

 (5) "Review organization" means  
(A) A hospital governing body or a committee whose membership is limited to health care providers and 

administrative staff, except where otherwise provided for by state or federal law, and that is 
established by a hospital, by a clinic, by one or more state or local associations of health care 
providers, by an organization of health care providers from a particular area or medical institution, or 
by a professional standards review organization established under 42 U.S.C. 1320c-1, to gather 
and review information relating to the care and treatment of patients for the purposes of  

  (i) Evaluating and improving the quality of health care rendered in the area or medical 
   institution;  

  (ii) Reducing morbidity or mortality;  
  (iii) Obtaining and disseminating statistics and information relative to the treatment  

   and prevention of diseases, illness, and injuries;  
  (iv) Developing and publishing guidelines showing the norms of health care in the  

   area or medical institution;  
  (v) Developing and publishing guidelines designed to keep the cost of health care  

   within reasonable bounds;  
  (vi) Reviewing the quality or cost of health care services provided to enrollees of  

   health maintenance organizations;  
  (vii) Acting as a professional standards review organization under 42 U.S.C. 1320c;  
  (viii) Reviewing, ruling on, or advising on controversies, disputes, or questions  

   between a health insurance carrier or health maintenance organization and  
   one or more of its insured or enrollees; between a professional licensing board, 
   acting under its powers of discipline or license revocation or suspension, and a 
   health care provider licensed by it when the matter is referred to a review  
   organization by the professional licensing board; between a health care  
   provider and the provider's patients concerning diagnosis, treatment, or care, 
    or a charge or fee; between a health care provider and a health insurance 
    carrier or health maintenance organization concerning a charge or fee for 
    health care services provided to an insured or enrollee; or between a health 
    care provider or the provider's patients and the federal or a state or local 
    government, or an agency of the federal or a state or local government;  

  (ix) Acting on the recommendation of a credential review committee or a grievance 
committee;  

(B) The State Medical Board established by AS 08.64.010;  
(C) A committee established by the commissioner of health and social services and approved by the State 

Medical Board to review public health issues regarding morbidity or mortality; at least 75 percent of 
the committee members must be health care providers.  

 

 

Page 27 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Alaska Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Page 28 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

 
 
 

Alaska Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

This document provides a logistical framework for acute care hospitals to exchange resources 

during a public health emergency or disaster.  Execution of this document does not relieve 

organizations from normal due diligence nor does it relieve them of liability.  At the time of 

signing, additional legal protections from the State of Alaska or Federal government are not in 

place. 

The Alaska State Hospital & Nursing Home Association has developed this agreement and 

fostered its implementation.  They are not responsible for any actions carried out as a 

result of this agreement. 
 
 
 

 

DATE 
 

REVISIONS TO AGREEMENT 
 

August 23, 2011 
 

Added the following language regarding annual review of the 
document. 
“This document will be reviewed each year at the annual meeting of 
the Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association and be 
revised as needed. 

 

August 23, 2011 
 

Updated list of participating hospitals on pages 11-12. 

 
January 2014 
 

 
Updated agreement to enable Federal facilities to participate. 

Page 29 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

 
 
1. Purpose of Mutual Aid Agreement 
The purpose of this mutual aid support agreement is to aid hospitals in their emergency 
management by addressing the loan of medical personnel, pharmaceuticals, supplies, and 
equipment, or assistance with emergent healthcare facility evacuation, including accepting 
transferred patients.  With this mutual aid agreement in place, a disaster impacted hospital 
can request and receive assistance from other Alaskan hospitals quickly and efficiently, 
resolving two key issues related to the loaning of equipment and personnel: liability and 
reimbursement. 

 
This Mutual Aid Agreement (MAA) is a voluntary agreement among the hospitals in the 
State of Alaska for the purpose of providing mutual aid at the time of a medical disaster. 
For purposes of this MAA, a disaster is defined as an overwhelming incident that exceeds 
the effective response capability of the impacted health care facility or facilities.  The 
disaster may be an "external" or "internal" event for healthcare facilities and assumes that 
each affected healthcare facility's emergency management plans have been fully 
implemented. 

 
This MAA has been developed to assist one hospital providing mutual aid to another, 
regardless of the circumstances, in a consistent and mutually acceptable manner.  

 
By signing this MAA each healthcare facility is evidencing its intent to make a good faith 
effort to abide by the terms of the MAA in the event of a medical disaster as described 
above. For Federal parties to this MAA, participation may be subject to, and limited by, 
obligations under the Stafford Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 5121, et seq., the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security National Response Framework, the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services National Disaster Medical System, the provisions of 38 U.S.C. 8110(a)(1), 
and other applicable Federal law. 

 
2.  Coordination of This Agreement with Local Emergency Preparedness 
This agreement serves as a tool that can be used by hospitals and local/state emergency 
management agencies.  All efforts should be made to use the local established channels of 
communication such as the local Office of Emergency Management, and, in the event of 
an incident, the Incident Command and or the Unified Command to obtain needed 
resources and to coordinate resource allocation decisions and facilitate logistics support. 

 
If the terms of this agreement do not provide an adequate framework for response, local 
policy makers (including hospital administrators) may choose to operate under a different 
arrangement.  The terms of the agreement are valid unless otherwise noted by the 
organization facilitating the mutual aid request. 

 

3.  Definitions 
A.   “Hospital” is an institution that provides medical, surgical, or psychiatric care 

and treatment for the sick or the injured. 
 

B.   “Affected Hospital” is a party, which is impacted by an External or Internal 
Disaster and requests to borrow resources from another hospital or to transfer 

Page 30 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

patients to the other hospital. 
 

C.  “Assisting Hospital” is a party, which is available upon request to lend resources 
or to receive the transfer of patients from the Affected Hospital. 

 
D.  “Borrowing Hospital” is a party which requests staff, equipment, supplies and/or 

other essential services from the other hospital in the event of an external or 
internal disaster. 

 
E.   “Evacuation” means the process of moving patients from the Affected Hospital 

due to an external or internal disaster that threatens life and/or the ability of the 
Affected Hospital to provide health care services. 

 
F.   "External Disaster" means a disaster occurring or imminent in the community 

surrounding a party. External Disasters include, but are not limited to, natural 
disasters such as earthquakes, and man-made disasters such as acts of terrorism. 
An external disaster may affect the entire facility or only a portion of the facility. 

 
G.  "Internal Disaster" means a disaster occurring within a party’s facility that 

materially affects the party’s ability to provide patient care. Internal disasters 
include, but are not limited to, fires, loss of electrical power, loss of heat, or loss of 
water/sewer services. An internal disaster may affect the entire facility or only a 
portion of the facility. 

 
H.  “Lending Hospital” is a party, which is available to provide staff, equipment, 

supplies, and/or other essential services to the other party in the event of an 
external or internal disaster. 

 
4.  Transfer Responsibilities of Affected Hospital 
The parties agree that in the event it becomes necessary to transfer patients from the Affected 
Hospital to the Assisting Hospital, the Affected Hospital shall: 

 
A. Contact the Designated Representative at the Assisting Hospital as soon as the 

Affected Hospital becomes aware of the need to transfer patients.  
 

B. Comply with any limitations communicated to the Affected Hospital regarding the 
numbers and types/acuity of patients that the Assisting Hospital is able to accept. 

 
C.  Triage all patients prior to transfer to verify that the types and acuity of services 

required are within any limitations communicated to the Affected Hospital 
regarding the numbers and types/acuity of patients that the Assisting Hospital is 
able to accept. 

 
D.  Arrange for the transport of each patient to the Assisting Hospital, with the 

support of such medical personnel and equipment as is required by the patient's 
condition. 

 

Page 31 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

E.   Deliver to the Assisting Hospital, with each patient transferred, medical records 
to the extent authorized under applicable law and policy, or copies thereof, 
sufficient to indicate the patient's diagnoses, condition, and treatment provided 
and planned; and 

 
F. If feasible, inventory the patient's personal effects and valuables transported to the 

Assisting Hospital with the patient.  The Affected Hospital shall deliver the 
inventory and the patient's valuables to the personnel transporting the patient, and 
receive a receipt for such items. The Assisting Hospital shall, in turn, 
acknowledge and sign a receipt for the valuables delivered to it. 

 

5.  Transfer Responsibilities of Assisting Hospital 
The parties agree that in accepting the transfer of patients from the Affected 
Hospital, the Assisting Hospital shall: 

A.   Ensure that the Designated Representative is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week to implement this Agreement and to communicate to the Affected Hospital 
regarding the numbers and types/acuity of patients who may be transferred. 

 
B. Accept all transfers from the Affected Hospital that are within the limitations 

communicated by the Designated Representative of the Assisting Hospital.  The 
Assisting Hospital shall not be obligated to accept any patients which exceed its 
capacity or staffing, which shall be determined in the Assisting Hospital's sole 
discretion. 

 
C.  Record in the clinical records of each transferred patient notations of the condition 

of the patient upon arrival at the Assisting Hospital. 
 

D.  If personal effects and valuables of the patient are transported with the patient, 
check those items against the inventory prepared by the Affected Hospital, and 
issue a receipt for such items as are received by the Assisting Hospital to the 
personnel transporting the patient. 

 

6.  Return of Patients to Affected Hospital 
Once the emergency conditions that required the transfer have sufficiently resolved, and if 
medically appropriate for the individual patients, the Affected Hospital shall make 
arrangements to transfer the patients back to the Affected Hospital as soon as practical.  Upon 
re-transfer to the Affected Hospital, the Assisting Hospital will return to the Affected 
Hospital any original medical records, including x-ray films, transferred with the patient.  The 
Assisting Hospital shall also provide copies of medical records regarding all care provided to 
the patient by the Assisting Hospital to the extent authorized by applicable law and policy. 

 
7.   Discharge 
If a transferred patient is discharged by the Assisting Hospital, the Assisting Hospital will 
return to the Affected Hospital any original medical records, including x-ray films, 
transferred with the patient.  If the Affected Hospital is not then able to receive the returned 
medical records, the Assisting Hospital will retain the records in the Assisting Hospital's 
records department until requested by the Affected Hospital. 

 
 

Page 32 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

8.   Charges for Services 
All charges  for  services  provided  at  the  Affected  Hospital  or  at  the  Assisting 
Hospital for patients transferred pursuant to this Agreement shall be collected by the party 
providing such services directly from the patient, third party payor or other source normally 
billed by the party.  The parties agree to cooperate with each other in billing and collecting for 
services furnished to patients pursuant to this Agreement.  The billing and collection of 
charges for transportation of the patient from the Affected Hospital to the Assisting Hospital 
(and to return the patient to the Affected Hospital) shall be handled among the Affected 
Hospital, the patient and the transporting medium.  The Medicare allowable charges for 
outpatient and Medicare DRG for inpatient charges should be the basis of paid or received 
amounts, unless applicable Federal law requires a different basis. 

 
9.  Short Term Emergency Relocation of Patients 
The parties agree that in some circumstances it may be necessary for the Affected Hospital to 
immediately relocate patients pending transfer arrangements.  Assisting Hospital agrees to use 
its best efforts to accommodate requests for emergency relocation by providing a physical 
location for such patients. In such circumstances, Affected Hospital shall provide all staff, 
equipment, and supplies to maintain the patients until an appropriate transfer can be 
accomplished.  Assisting Hospital shall not be charged for the use of such staff, equipment and 
supplies during a short- term emergency relocation.  Affected Hospital will be solely 
responsible for care of temporarily relocated patients and for making appropriate transfer and 
transportation arrangements as quickly as feasible.   Affected Hospital shall reimburse 
Assisting Hospital for any direct expenses incurred by Assisting Hospital in accommodating 
temporary relocation of patients. 
 
10.  Supplies 
Each party agrees to use its best efforts to make medical and general supplies, including 
pharmaceuticals, available to a Borrowing Hospital in the event of an internal or external 
disaster, upon request and subject to any required sharing agreement.  Supplies may be 
requested to address needs of transferred patients or may be requested to address internal or 
external disasters that require access to additional supplies without movement of patients.   
The Lending Hospital shall be entitled to use its own reasonable judgment regarding the 
type and amount of supplies that it can provide without adversely affecting its own ability 
to provide services.   The Borrowing Hospital that receives the supplies will reimburse 
the Lending Hospital based on the actual cost of those supplies unless otherwise 
mutually agreed.  Unused supplies may be returned, provided that they are unopened and 
in good and usable condition. The Lending Hospital makes no warranties, express, implied, 
or statutory, with respect to any medical or general supplies provided under this 
Agreement, including, without limitation, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a 
particular purpose. 

 
 
11.  Equipment 
Each  party  agrees  to  use  its  best  efforts  to  make  biomedical  equipment 
(including, but not limited to ventilators, monitors and infusion pumps) available to a 
Borrowing Hospital in the event of an internal or external disaster, upon request and subject 
to any required sharing agreement.   The Lending Hospital shall be entitled to use its own 
reasonable judgment regarding the type and amount of equipment that it can provide 
without adversely affecting its own ability to provide services. To the best of the Lending 

Page 33 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Hospital’s knowledge, all equipment loaned will be in good working order.  The 
Borrowing Hospital may request a copy of the most recent preventive maintenance records. 

 
 
12.  Transportation 
When feasible, the Borrowing Hospital will be responsible for making arrangements for 
transporting the loaned equipment or personnel.  If the Borrowing Hospital is unable to 
make these arrangements, the Lending Hospital will arrange for shipping/ transportation of 
loaned equipment or personnel to and from the Borrowing Hospital. All expenses of 
shipping/transport shall be the responsibility of the Borrowing Hospital. 

 
 
13.  Risk of Loss or Damage 
The Borrowing Hospital assumes the risk of loss or damage to equipment while in its 
possession or in transit.  The Borrowing Hospital will promptly notify the Lending Hospital if 
damage or loss of equipment occurs. 

 

14.  Return of Equipment 
The Borrowing Hospital will promptly return the equipment to the Lending Hospital upon 
request, unless return of the equipment would be life-threatening to a patient at the 
Borrowing Hospital or would otherwise significantly compromise the health or safety of a 
patient. 

 
15. Compensation 
The Borrowing Hospital will compensate the Lending Hospital for the use of the equipment.  
To the extent the equipment is leased by the Lending Hospital, the reimbursement shall be 
at the actual lease cost, prorated based on the number of days of use lost by the Lending 
Hospital unless otherwise mutually agreed.  If the equipment is owned by the Lending 
Hospital, Borrowing Hospital will compensate Lending Hospital at a negotiated rate which 
shall not exceed the fair market rental value of comparable equipment for the number of days 
of use lost by the Lending Hospital unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

 
16.  Warranty 
The Lending Hospital shall exercise reasonable efforts to disclose its knowledge of any 
defect in the loaned equipment.   The Borrowing Hospital assumes full responsibility for 
use of the loaned equipment. The Lending Hospital makes no warranties, express, implied, 
or statutory, with respect to any equipment supplied under this Agreement, including, but not 
limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

 
17.  Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff 
The Lending Hospital shall inform its medical staff members of the request for assistance 
and offer them the opportunity to participate in the Lending Hospital’s response. 

 
18. Credentials and Privileges for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff 
The guidelines for sharing of Credentials information between facilities for the process of 
granting privileges is detailed in Attachment C of this agreement. 

 
19.  Patient Care Staff 
The parties agree to use their best efforts to make staff available to a Borrowing Hospital in 
the event of an internal or external disaster, upon request. The Lending Hospital shall be 
entitled to use its own reasonable judgment regarding the clinical staff it can provide without 

Page 34 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

adversely affecting its own ability to provide services. Staff subject to this agreement shall be 
limited to staff employed by the Lending Hospital. Agency staff must be obtained directly 
from the employing agency. 

 

20.  Responsibility for Personnel 
The parties agree that the personnel made available to the Borrowing Hospital shall be totally 
under the supervision and control of the Borrowing Hospital while performing any actions in 
response to the Borrowing Hospital's request for personnel.  The Borrowing Hospital assumes 
full responsibility for the actions of the employees made available by the Lending Hospitals. 

 
21.  Housing of Personnel 
The Borrowing Hospital is responsible for housing and feeding personnel sent by a Lending 
Hospital. 

 
22.  Personnel Files 
The Lending Hospital shall provide to the Borrowing Hospital upon request, to the extent 
authorized by law, copies of personnel files sufficient to document the licensure, training and 
competence of the loaned staff.  The Lending Hospital shall use its best efforts to ensure that 
such records comply with licensure and accreditation requirements applicable to the Lending 
Hospital. 

 
23.  Recall of Staff 
The Lending Hospital may recall its clinical staff at any time in its sole discretion.  If feasible, 
adequate notice will be provided to allow the Borrowing Hospital to arrange staffing from 
other facilities or agencies. 

 
24.  Personnel Compensation 
During the period of assistance, unless otherwise mutually agreed, the Lending Hospital shall 
continue to pay its employees according to its then prevailing ordinances, rules, and 
regulations.  The Borrowing Hospital will compensate the Lending Hospital for the use of the 
staff at the current hourly rate (including shift differential and overtime) paid by the Lending 
Hospital to such staff. 

 
Employees deployed from a Lending Hospital are responsible for keeping track of any airline, 
lodging, meals, and other miscellaneous expenses they may personally pay.  These expenses 
will be reimbursed, to the extent authorized under applicable law, to the employee by the 
Lending Hospital once an expense report has been submitted by the employee to the Lending 
Hospital.  The Borrowing Hospital is responsible for reimbursing the Lending Hospital for 
these expenses. 

 
25.  Ancillary Services 
The parties agree to use their best efforts to make essential ancillary services, including, but 
not limited to, clinical laboratory and dietary services, available to a Borrowing Hospital in 
the event of an internal or External Disaster, upon request. When feasible, the Borrowing 
Hospital will be responsible for all transportation and delivery services associated with the 
ancillary services, such as the delivery of laboratory specimens and the pick-up and delivery 
of dietary supplies or pharmaceuticals.     If the Borrowing Hospital is unable to provide 
transportation/delivery, the Lending Hospital will arrange for transportation/delivery to and 
from the Borrowing Hospital.  All expenses of shipping/transport shall be the responsibility of 

Page 35 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

the Borrowing Hospital.  The Borrowing Hospital will compensate the Lending Hospital at 
50% of standard billed charges for all ancillary services for which there are standard charges.  
For all other ancillary services, Borrowing Hospital will compensate the Lending Hospital 
based on the actual costs of the ancillary services.  Where Federal entities lack statutory 
authority to charge at a reduced rate, Borrowing Hospital will compensate Lending Hospital at 
the standard rate. 

 
26.  Payment 
Unless otherwise mutually agreed, the Lending Hospital shall bill the Borrowing Hospital 
for all reimbursable expenses with an itemized statement as soon as practical after the 
expenses are incurred.  The Borrowing Hospital shall pay the bill, or advise of any 
disputed items, not later than 120 days following receipt of the statement, unless otherwise 
agreed upon. 

 
27.  Responsibility – Insurance 
Each party shall throughout the term of this Agreement maintain comprehensive general 
liability insurance, workers compensation insurance, property insurance and professional 
liability (malpractice) insurance to cover their activities hereunder and upon request of the 
other party shall provide to the other party certificates evidencing the existence of such 
insurance coverage.  Each party may at its option satisfy its obligations under this section 
through self-insurance programs and protections deemed by it to be comparable to the 
insurance coverage described herein, and upon request, provide to the other party information 
showing that the self-insurance programs offer such comparable protection.    Independent 
practitioners who maintain their own professional liability insurance may be sent through their 
privileged facility but would come with their own liability insurance with authorization from 
their insurance carrier. 

 
If an employee of the Lending Hospital is injured while working at the Borrowing Hospital’s 
site, the employee is covered by the Lending Hospital’s Workers Compensation Policy, unless 
otherwise determined by the Office of Workers’ Compensation Program (OWCP). 

 
Independent practitioners who maintain their own professional liability insurance may be 
sent through their privileging hospital, but would operate within their own insurance 
policies with the authorization of their insurance carriers. 

 

28. Independent Relationship 
None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create nor shall be deemed or 
construed to create a partnership, joint venture or any relationship between the signing parties, 
other than that of independent entities contracting with each other hereunder solely for the 
purpose of effecting the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
29.  Terms  
This document will be reviewed each year at the annual meeting of the Alaska State 
Hospital and Nursing Home Association and be revised as needed.  This Agreement shall be 
self-renewing for additional one-year terms.  However, this Agreement may be terminated 
(a) with or without cause, by either party giving sixty (60) days prior written notice of 
termination to ASHNHA, or (b) immediately by any party upon a breach by any party of any 
term or provision of this Agreement or default by the other party under the terms of this 
Agreement.  No termination of this Agreement shall affect any rights or liabilities accruing 

Page 36 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

prior to the time of termination. 
 
30.  Affiliation with Other Facilities 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as limiting the right of the parties to affiliate or 
contract with any other entity operating a hospital or other health care facility on either a 
limited or general basis while this Agreement is in effect.  Each party acknowledges that, in 
the event of a large scale External Disaster, the ability of the Assisting Hospital to accept 
patients from the Affected Hospital will be affected by the receipt of patients from other 
sources, including direct admissions from the community and transfers of patients from other 
facilities.  This Mutual Aid Agreement  is  not  intended  to  establish  a  preferred  status  for  
patients  of  the Affected Hospitals.  All decisions regarding allocation of available facilities 
will be made by the Assisting Hospital using its best judgment about the needs of its 
community. 

 
31.  Effect of Agreement 
The execution of this Agreement shall not give rise to any liability or responsibility for failure 
to respond to any request for assistance, lack of speed in answering such a request, inadequacy 
of equipment, or abilities of the responding personnel. 

 
32.  Copy of Agreement 
A conformed copy of this Agreement, with all amendments, if any, together with a copy of the 
current policies and procedures, referral forms and other documents adopted by the parties to 
implement this Agreement shall be kept in the administrative file of each of the parties for 
ready reference. 

 

33.  Assignment 
This Agreement and the rights of the parties hereunder, may not be assigned by any party, 
without the prior written consent of the receiving hospital. 

 
34.  Notices 
Any notices required or permitted hereunder shall be sufficiently given and deemed received 
upon personal delivery, or upon the third business day following deposit in the U.S. Mail, if 
sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed or delivered as follows: 
 
Copies to: 

 
Executing Hospital:   See Attachment A: Participating Hospitals 
 
 
 
Other:  Alaska State Hospital & Nursing Home Association 
 President/CEO 
 643 W. Sixth St Suite 120 
 Anchorage, AK  99501 (907) 646-1444 
 
  State of Alaska, Health and Social Services Commissioners Office,  
  Chief Medical Officer  
  P.O. Box 110610 
  Juneau, AK 99811-0610 (907) 465-3092 
 

Page 37 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

  State of Alaska, Department of Military and Veterans Affairs,  
  Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
  Director, Alaska Division of Emergency Services 
  P.O. Box 5750 
  Fort Richardson, AK 99505-5750 
  Phone: (907)428-7000 

 
 
 
35.  Modification of Agreement 
This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties and shall not be modified 
except by an instrument in writing facilitated by ASHNHA and signed by the participating 
parties. 

 
36.  No Waiver 
No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be construed to be a waiver of 
any breach of any other provision of this Agreement or of any succeeding breach of the same 
provision. 

 
37.  Governing Law 
This Agreement, and the rights, obligations and remedies of the parties hereto, shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with Federal Law and, to the extent not 
inconsistent therewith, the laws of the State of Alaska. 
 

 
  

Page 38 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Attachment A: Participating Hospitals 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties have caused this Alaska State Hospital & 
Nursing Home Association Mutual Aid Agreement to be duly executed in its name and 
behalf by its chief executive officer, who has signed accordingly, as of the date set forth in 
this Agreement. The signature pages are on file at Juneau Office of the Alaska State 
Hospital & Nursing Home Association and are available upon request. 

Organization Name Signed By 
(Name, Title) 

Date 
Signed 

Point of Contact During 

Response 

Alaska Native Medical 
Center 

Alaska Psychiatric 
Institute 

Alaska Regional Hospital 

Alaska VA Healthcare System 

Bartlett Regional Hospital 

Central Peninsula 
General Hospital 

Bassett Army Community 
Hospital 

Cordova Community 
Medical Center 
Fairbanks Memorial 
Hospital 

Joint Base Elmendorf 
Richardson 673d Medical Grp 

Kanakanak Hospital/Bristol 
Bay Area Health Corp. 

Ketchikan General 
Hospital 
Maniilaq Health Center 

Mat-Su Regional 
Medical Center 

Mt. Edgecombe/ 
SEARHC 

North Star Behavioral 
Health 

Norton Sound Health 
Corporation 

Petersburg Medical 
Center 

Page 39 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Providence Alaska 
Medical Center 

Providence Kodiak Island 
Medical Center 

Providence Seward 
Medical and Care Center 

Providence Valdez 
Medical Center 

Samuel Simmonds 
Memorial 
Sitka Community 
Hospital 
St. Elias Specialty 
Hospital 
South Peninsula Hospital 

Wrangell Medical Center 

Yukon-Kuskokwim Health 
Corporation 

Page 40 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Attachment B:   Executing Hospital Signature Page 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties have caused this Alaska State Hospital & 
Nursing Home Association Mutual Aid Agreement to be duly executed in its name and 
behalf by its chief executive officer, who has signed accordingly, as of the date set forth in 
this Agreement. 

Organization Name 

Name 

Title 

Phone Number 

Signature 

Date Signed 

Name of Internal 
Emergency Management 

Contact 

Title 

Phone Number 

Content Approved by: _______________________________________, , Richard D. Monkman
Sonosky Chambers Sachse Miller & Munson, LLP

Form Approved by: _______________________________________________, Law Department
Risk Management Review: ________________________________________, Risk Management

Page 41 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

Attachment C: Shared Information Agreement for Credentialing 
For use during declared Emergencies/Disasters 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into between all the Healthcare Entities 
(“Entity”) in Alaska, who have signed in approval the Mutual Aid Agreement, for use 
and implementation during an emergency/disaster situation. 

Each Entity desires to receive certain credentialing services per this agreement and to 
provide certain credentialing services to other Entities under the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement; 

In exchange for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  Services. The Entity engages and accepts the engagement, to perform the
services set forth in this Agreement.  Each Entity agrees to perform the services
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and as listed below:

a. The manner, means and methods of performing the Services are under the
sole control of each Entity so long as they are lawful and follow the Joint
Commission standards of care.  For entities subject to Medicare/Medicaid
conditions of participation (“COP”), Services shall follow the COP and
any amendments thereto.

b. This Agreement will not be construed to create an association,
partnership, or joint venture, or a principal/agent or employer/employee
relationship between Entities.

c. Each Entity is responsible for notifying another Entity when verification
of providers’ privileges is required and will request a copy of the packet
for their Entity.  The Entity who received the request will respond to each
request as soon as is possible dependent upon the nature of the
emergency/disaster.  In some cases the forms may be couriered, mailed,
faxed, e-mailed, as needed to expedite the application process.  Once an
application has been received, the Entity will begin to process the
application in the order it was received in conjunction will all other
applications received by the Entity.

d. All original documents will be maintained at the Entity that originated an
application.  When an application is received during a time of
emergency/disaster, an Entity may request a complete copy of the
applicant’s credentials file from another Entity of which the applicant has
agreed in writing to provide emergency/disaster services.

e. Each Entity will make every effort to verify the needed information as
quickly as possible to meet another Entity’s needs.  However, no facility
may monopolize the staff of another Entity to the detriment of the other
Entity’s participating in this agreement.

Page 42 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

f. If an Entity during its credentialing process discovers derogatory
information about an applicant, they will immediately notify the receiving
facility to the extent authorized by law.

2.  Compensation.  For Services actually performed, each Entity agrees there
shall be no compensation for credentialing services during an
emergency/disaster situation unless required by law.

3.  Term and Termination.

a. This Agreement shall be effective only during an emergency/disaster
called by the city or state authority.  This agreement shall terminate when
the Entity is no longer in need of volunteers to be credentialed.

b. Upon termination of this Agreement, no Entity shall have further rights
against, or obligations to, the other party except with respect to any rights
or obligations accruing prior to the date and time of termination and any
obligations, promises or agreements which expressly extend beyond the
termination, including, but not limited, those set out in Sections 4, 6, 8
and 10.

4.  Confidential Information.

a. “Confidential Information” means, without limitation, information
relating to: the Entity (including any person, corporation, partnership,
general partner or other entity that directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common
control with the Entity), its trade secrets, proprietary information,
arrangements with suppliers or payors; its patients and their personal,
medical or financial information; technical data, records, compilations of
information, processes and specifications or any other information or
material which derives economic value, actual or potential, from not
being generally known to other persons or is the subject of efforts that are
reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy or
confidentiality.  Confidential Information shall not include information,
which is in the public domain.

b. Each Entity agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, as codified at 42 U.S.C. §  1320d (“HIPAA”)
and any current and future regulations promulgated thereunder including
without limitation the federal privacy regulations contained in 45 C.F.R.
Parts 160 and 164 (the “Federal Privacy Regulations”), the federal
security standards contained in 45 C.F.R. Part 142 (the “Federal Security
Regulations”), and the federal standards for electronic transactions
contained in 45 C.F.R.

Parts 160 and 162, all collectively referred to herein as “HIPAA 
Requirements”. Each Entity agrees not to use or further disclose any 
Protected Health Information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501) 
or Individually Identifiable Health Information (as defined in 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1320d), other than as permitted by HIPAA Requirements and the 
terms of this Agreement. Each Entity will make its internal practices, 

Page 43 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Health 
Information available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services to 
the extent required for determining compliance with the Federal Privacy 
Regulations.  In the event any Entity discloses or uses Confidential 
Information in violation of this section, any Entity may terminate this 
Agreement. 

5.  Records.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, an Entity that worked an
original file will keep the original and other Entities will keep the subsequent
copies.  There is no need for shift or return of information for items obtained
while this Agreement was in effect.

Each Entity shall, in accordance with 42 U.S.C. section 1385(v)(1)(I) and
42 C.F.R. Part 420, Subpart D section 420.300 et seq., until the expiration of four
(4) years after the furnishing of Medicare reimbursable services pursuant to this
Agreement, upon proper written request, allow the Comptroller General of the
United States, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, and their duly
authorized representatives access to this Agreement and to Entity’s books,
documents and records necessary to certify the nature and extent of costs of
Medicare reimbursable services provided under this Agreement

6.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed under Federal Law and,
to the extent not inconsistent therewith, the laws of the State of Alaska.

7.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto contain the entire
Agreement between the parties hereto and supersede all prior agreements,
contracts and understandings, whether written or otherwise, between the parties
relating to the subject matter hereof. There are no representations or agreements
except as set forth herein.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

8.  Partial Invalidity.  In the event any provision of this Agreement is found to be
legally invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect provided the fundamental rights
and obligations remaining reasonably unaffected.

9.  Notices.  Any notices required to be given in respect to this Agreement shall be
deemed to be given upon the earlier of actual delivery to the intended recipient
or its agent.

10. Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is entered into for the sole benefit
of the Entities during an emergency/disaster.  Nothing contained herein or in the
parties’ course of dealings shall be construed as conferring any third party
beneficiary status on any person or entity not a party to this Agreement,
including, without limitation, Entity representative.

11. Non-Waiver.  No waiver of any term or condition of this Agreement by either
party shall be deemed a continuing or further waiver of the same term or
condition or waiver of any other term or condition of this Agreement.

12. Change of Circumstances.  In the event (i) Medicare, Medicaid, or any third-
party payor or any federal, state or local legislative or regulatory authority adopts

Page 44 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association 
Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement 

any law, rule, regulation, policy, procedure or interpretation thereof which 
establishes a material change for services under this Agreement, or if (ii) any or all 
such authorities impose requirements which require a material change in the 
manner of either party’s operations under this Agreement then, upon the request of 
either party materially affected by any such change in circumstances, the parties 
shall enter into good faith negotiations for the purpose of establishing such 
amendments or modifications as may be appropriate in order to accommodate the 
new requirements and change of circumstances while preserving the original 
intent of this Agreement to the greatest extent possible. 

13. Representation and Warranty. Each Entity represents and warrants to the
other Entities that Entity i) is not currently excluded, debarred, or otherwise
ineligible to participate in the Federal health care programs as defined in 42
U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(f) (the “Federal health care programs”); (ii) is not
convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or
services but has not yet been excluded, debarred, or otherwise declared
ineligible to participate in the Federal health care programs, and iii) is not under
investigation or otherwise aware of any circumstances which may result in the
Entity being excluded from participation in the Federal health care programs.
This shall be an ongoing representation and warranty during the term of this
Agreement and CVO shall immediately notify Facility of any change in the
status of the representation and warranty set forth in this section.  Any breach of
this section shall give Facility the right to terminate this Agreement immediately
for cause.

14. Agreement Expiration.  This agreement remains in effect until terminated by an
Entity. 

15. Required Approvals.  This Agreement shall not be effective, or legally binding,
by any Entity until it has been signed by the participating Entities with original
signature.

Page 45 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Fox Lawson & 
Associates  

Class and Compensation 
agreement 
$52,000 

Page 46 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 47 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 2 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Content Approved by: _______________________________________, HR Department 

Form Approved by: _______________________________________________, Law Department 

Risk Management Review: ________________________________________, Risk Management 

4//10/2014 for J.E.S.

Page 48 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 3 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

APPENDIX A: SCOPE OF WORK, TERM, AND COMPENSATION 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The services to be provided under this contract are described in this Appendix A and in: 

ATTACHMENT 1: 02/24/14 Proposal for Compensation Services 

 ATTACHMENTS 1 is wholly incorporated by this reference.

2. TERM 

This contract shall be effective on the date it is signed by the BRH, and it shall automatically 
terminate on December 31, 2014, or upon completion of the Final Report, whichever occurs first.   

3. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

 1. The total amount to be paid under this contract shall not exceed $52,000.00. 

 2. Payments shall be made upon completion of each phase, as more fully described 
in Attachment 1 and as follows: 

PHASE DESCRIPTION FEES 
I Implementation and Strategy Development $6,000.00
II Job Evaluation and Classification Structure 

Development 
$15,000.00

III Compensation Structure Development $10,000.00
IV Compensation Plan Update $15,000.00
V Final Report $6,000.00

   
 3. Any additional services provided will be billed at an hourly rate based on the 
following rate schedule: 

LEVEL RATE LEVEL RATE 
Managing Director $375.00 Consultant $225.00
Senior Consultant $275.00 Consulting Associate $125.00

Page 49 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 4 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

APPENDIX B: STANDARD PROVISIONS

1. CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP.  The parties intended that an independent 
Consultant relationship will be created by this contract.  The CBJ is interested only in the results 
to be achieved as provided in this agreement.  The conduct and control of the work will lie solely 
with the Consultant.  Consultant is not considered to be an agent or employee of the CBJ for any 
purpose, and the employees of Consultant are not entitled to any benefits that CBJ provides for 
CBJ employees.  CBJ does not agree to use the Consultant exclusively.  Consultant does not 
agree to work for CBJ exclusively. 

2. PERSONNEL, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES.  Except as provided in the Scope of 
Work, the Consultant represents that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel, 
equipment, and supplies required in performing the work under this contract.  All of the work 
required hereunder will be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision.  None of the 
work covered by this Contract shall be subcontracted except as provided in the Scope of Work. 

3. CONSULTANT QUALIFICATIONS.  Consultant warrants that it is fully qualified and 
is licensed under all applicable local, state, and federal laws to perform its obligations under this 
contract.

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  Consultant has secured and agrees to keep and 
maintain in full force and effect, at its own expense, the insurance approved by CBJ Risk 
Management as outlined in Appendix C.  All insurance required under this contract shall name 
the CBJ as an additional insured, except with respect to any required Professional Liability or 
Workers Compensation policies, and shall require that the insurance company give prior written 
notice consistent with the terms of the policy, to the CBJ’s Risk Management Officer prior to 
any cancellation, non-renewal, or reduction in the amount of coverage.  If the Consultant 
maintains higher limits than shown below, the CBJ shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant. Each policy shall be endorsed to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the CBJ by reason of any payment made for claims under the above 
coverage, except Workers Compensation and Professional Liability. 

a. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles and self-insured 
retentions must be declared to and approved by the CBJ. The CBJ may require the Consultant 
to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration and 
defense expenses within the retention.  

b. Claims-Made Policies.  If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-
made basis:  

1. The Retroactive Date must be declared and must be before the date of the contract 
or the beginning of the contract work.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 
least one (1) year after completion of the contract work.

Page 50 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 5 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with the Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, 
the Consultant must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of 
one (1) year after completion of the contract work.

5. CHANGES.  The CBJ may, from time to time, require changes in the scope of services 
to be performed under this contract.  Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the 
amount of the Consultant’s compensation, must be mutually agreed upon in writing before they 
will be regarded as part of this contract.  No claim for additional services, not specifically 
provided in this contract, performed or furnished by the Consultant, will be allowed, nor may the 
Consultant do any work or furnish any material not covered by the contract unless the work or 
material is ordered in writing by the CBJ. 

6. NO ASSIGNMENT OR DELEGATION.  The Consultant may not assign or delegate 
any interest in this contract without the prior written consent of the CBJ.  Consultant may assign 
its rights to any payment under this contract without the prior written consent of CBJ; however, 
notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to CBJ by Consultant. 

7. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE.  The CBJ may, by prior written notice, 
terminate this agreement at any time, in whole or in part, when it is in the best interest of the 
CBJ.  In the event that this contract is terminated by the CBJ for convenience, as opposed to 
termination for cause, the CBJ is liable only for payment in accordance with this agreement for 
work accomplished prior to the effective date of the termination. 

8. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION FOR CAUSE.  If Consultant fails to perform a 
material obligation under this contract, the CBJ may consider the Consultant to be in default 
(unless caused an event, circumstance, or act of a third party that is beyond Consultant’s 
reasonable control) and may assert a default claim by giving Consultant a written and detailed 
notice of default.  The Consultant shall cure the default within the time frame identified in the 
notice of default, or, if the default is not curable within the time frame specified, provide a 
written cure plan acceptable to the CBJ, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Consultant 
will begin implementing the cure plan immediately after receipt of notice that the CBJ approves 
the plan.  The CBJ’s payment obligations shall be held in abeyance until the default is cured.

9. INSPECTION AND RETENTION OF RECORDS.  The CBJ may inspect, in the 
manner and at reasonable times it considers appropriate, all of Consultant’s facilities, records and 
activities having any relevance to this contract.  Consultant shall retain financial and other 
records relating to the performance of this contract for a period of six years, or until the 
resolution of any audit findings, claims or litigation related to the contract. 

10. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.  The Consultant will not discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national 
origin, age, disability, marital status, changes in marital status, pregnancy or parenthood.
Consultant shall include these provisions in any agreement relating to the work performed under 
this agreement with Consultants or sub-contractors. 

Page 51 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 6 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

11. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION.  The Superior Court for the State of Alaska, 
First Judicial District at Juneau, Alaska shall be the exclusive jurisdiction for any action of any 
kind and any nature arising out of or related to this Agreement.  Venue for trial in any action 
shall be in Juneau, Alaska.  The laws of the State of Alaska shall govern the rights and 
obligations of the parties.  Consultant specifically waives any right or opportunity to request a 
change of venue for trial pursuant to A.S. 22.10.040. 

12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  Consultant shall, at 
Consultant’s sole cost and expense, comply with all applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local laws, ordinances and regulations now in force, including safety, environmental, 
immigration, and security enactments, or which may be subsequently enacted.  Consultant 
warrants that it has obtained and is in full compliance with all required licenses, permits, and 
registrations regulating the conduct of business within the State of Alaska and the CBJ, and shall 
maintain such compliance during the effective term of this agreement. 

13. PAYMENT OF TAXES AND OBLIGATIONS TO CBJ.  As a condition of this 
contract, the Consultant shall pay all federal, state, and local taxes incurred by the Consultant and 
shall require their payment of any sub-contractor or any other persons in the performance of this 
contract.  Consultant shall not be delinquent in the payment of taxes, or any other obligation, to 
CBJ during the performance of this contract.  Satisfactory performance of this paragraph is a 
condition precedent to payment by the CBJ under this contract. 

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  Consultant warrants that no employee or officer of the 
CBJ has violated the conflict of interest provisions of CBJ code regarding this contract.
Consultant also warrants that it has not solicited or received any prohibited action, favor or 
benefit from any employee or office of CBJ, and that it will not do so as a condition of this 
contract.  If the Consultant learns of any such conflict of interest, the Consultant shall without 
delay inform the CBJ and Borough Attorney or CBJ’s representative for this contract. 

15. INDEMNIFICATION.  The Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
CBJ, its employees, volunteers, consultants, and insurers, with respect to any action, claim, or 
lawsuit arising out of or related to the Consultant’s negligence, without limitation as to the 
amount of fees, and without limitation as to any damages, cost or expense resulting from 
settlement, judgment, or verdict, and includes the award of any attorneys’ fees even if in excess 
of Alaska Civil Rule 82.  This indemnification agreement applies to the fullest extent permitted 
by law and is in full force and effect whenever and wherever any action, claim, or lawsuit is 
initiated, filed, or otherwise brought against CBJ relating to this contract.  The obligations of 
Consultant arise immediately upon actual or constructive notice of any action, claim, or lawsuit.  
CBJ shall notify Consultant in a timely manner of the need for indemnification, but such notice 
is not a condition precedent to Consultant’s obligations and is waived where the Consultant has 
actual notice. 

16. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All designs, drawings, specifications, notes, 
artwork, and other work developed in the performance of this contract, with the exception of the 
Decision BandTM job evaluation tool, become the sole property of the CBJ and may be used by 
the CBJ for any other purpose without additional compensation to the Consultant. The Decision 

Page 52 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 7 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

BandTM  job evaluation tool will be provided to CBJ under a license with Contractor retaining 
full ownership of the proprietary software.  The Consultant agrees not to assert any rights and not 
to establish any claim under the design patent or copyright laws.  The Consultant, for a period of 
three years after final payment under this contract, agrees to furnish and provide access to all 
retained materials at the request of the CBJ.  Unless otherwise directed by the CBJ, the 
Consultant may retain copies of all the materials. 

17. IDENTIFICATION OF DOCUMENTS.  All reports, maps, and other documents 
completed as a part of this contract, other than documents exclusively for internal use within the 
CBJ, shall carry a CBJ notation or logo as directed by the CBJ. 

18. APPLICABILITY OF ALASKA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT.  Consultant 
acknowledges and understands that the CBJ is subject to the Alaska Public Records Act (AS 
40.25.120) and that all documents received, owned or controlled by the CBJ in relation to this 
Contract must be made available for the public to inspect upon request, unless an exception 
applies.  Consultant may not promise confidentiality to any third party on behalf of the CBJ, 
without first obtaining express written approval by the CBJ.  If records pertaining to this 
Contract are the subject of a public records request, CBJ agrees not to disclose such records 
without first providing notice to and opportunity for the Consultant to specifically identify 
confidential and/or proprietary information in the records, and to seek recourse in a court of law, 
to prevent or limit the disclosure of such information. 

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement, including all appendices and exhibits, 
constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties regarding the subject matter of the agreement and 
supersedes all previous agreements, proposals, and understandings, whether written or oral, 
relating to this subject matter.  

20. SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction renders any part of this 
agreement invalid or unenforceable, that part will be severed and the remainder of this agreement 
will continue in full force and effect.

21. WAIVER.  Failure or delay by the CBJ to exercise a right or power under this agreement 
will not be a waiver of the right or power.  For a waiver of a right or power to be effective, it 
must be in a writing signed by the CBJ.  An effective waiver of a right or power will not be 
construed as either a future or continuing waiver of that same right or power, or the waiver of 
any other right or power. 

Page 53 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services  Page 8 of 8 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

APPENDIX C: INSURANCE  

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS.  The Consultant has provided certification of proper 
insurance coverage to the City and Borough of Juneau, attached as Attachment 2. 

Consultant agrees to maintain insurance as follows at all times while this contract is in effect, 
including during any periods of renewal.

Commercial General Liability Insurance.  The Consultant must maintain Commercial 
General  Liability Insurance in an amount it deems reasonably sufficient to cover any suit that 
may be brought against the Consultant This amount must be at least one million dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per occurrence, and two million dollars ($2,000,000.00) aggregate. The
CBJ will be named as an additional insured on this policy for work performed for the 
CBJ.

Contractor currently has $20,000,000.00 General Liability coverage, which is the maximum 
liability payout under this contract. 

Workers Compensation Insurance.  If required by Alaska Statute (see Alaska Statute 
23.30), the Consultant must maintain Workers Compensation Insurance to protect the 
Consultant from any claims or damages for any bodily or personal injury or death which may 
arise from services performed under this contract.  This requirement applies to the 
Consultant's firm, the Consultant's sub-contractors and assignees, and anyone directly or 
indirectly employed to perform work under this contract.  The Consultant must notify the City 
as well as the State Division of Workers Compensation immediately when changes in the 
Consultant's business operation affect the Consultant's insurance status.  Statutory limits apply 
to Workers Compensation Insurance.  The policy must include employer’s liability coverage 
of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) per injury and illness, and five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000.00) policy limits. Consultant also agrees to provide evidence of 
Longshore and Harbor Worker’s Insurance and Jones Act coverage if applicable to the work 
required. If the Consultant is exempt from Alaska Statutory Requirements, the 
Consultant will provide written confirmation of this status in order for the CBJ to waive 
this requirement. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation rights against the 
CBJ.

Professional Liability. The consultant must maintain Professional Liability insurance in an 
amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) aggregate to protect the CBJ from 
any claims or damages for any error, omission, or negligent act of the Consultant, the 
Consultant’s firm, employees, or sub-consultants, which results in a financial loss to the CBJ. 

Page 54 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  1  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 19

Page 55 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 2 of 19

Page 56 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 3 of 19

Page 57 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

o
o
o
o

 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 4 of 19

Page 58 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 5 of 19

Page 59 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



6 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 6 of 19

Page 60 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



7 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 7 of 19

Page 61 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



8 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 8 of 19

Page 62 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



9 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 9 of 19

Page 63 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  10  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 10 of 19

Page 64 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  11  
 
 

 
 
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 11 of 19

Page 65 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  12  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 12 of 19

Page 66 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  13  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 13 of 19

Page 67 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  14  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 14 of 19

Page 68 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



15 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 15 of 19

Page 69 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  16  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 16 of 19

Page 70 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  17  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 17 of 19

Page 71 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



  18  
 
 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized  
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services 
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. 

Appendix A, Attachment 1 
Page 18 of 19

Page 72 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



19 

2014 Professional Services Contract for Specialized
Human Resources and Compensation Consulting Services
Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

Appendix A, Attachment 1
Page 19 of 19

Page 73 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



March 2014 Financial Results

Page 74 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Monthly Financial Reporting Package 

Table of Contents 
 
 

        Narrative                  38 
 
        Statement of Revenue & Expenses 

 Month & Year to Date vs. Budget        39‐40 
 Month by Month Budget          41‐42 

 
Key Indicators               43 
 
Balance Sheet                             44‐45 
 
Cash Summary               46 
 
Cash Receipts              47 
 
Capital Budget                             48‐50 
 
Graphs                       51‐55 

Page 75 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Monthly Financial Reporting Package 

Narrative 
 

Excess of revenues over expenses for the month of March 2014 was $400,216 which was $131,605 better than the budget of $268,611.  
March’s performance brings the year to date actual to $5,259,811 which exceeds the budget of $2,255,547 by $3,004,264 or 133%. 
 
Total gross patient revenue for the month was $243,263 worse than budget and is within .4% of budget on a year to date basis.  This 
negative variance is primarily due to the Acute Average Daily Census (ADC) dropping from 11.3 in February to 10.1 in March.  Deliveries 
totaled 26 in March, averaging slightly less than the 1 delivery per day seen in February.  Total surgeries were 437 in March, 1 higher than 
prior month.  Emergency Department visits averaged 39 per day in March, 1 visit per day higher than February.     
 
Deductions from revenue for March are under budget by $204,636 and were positively impacted by the receipt of the annual FY14 allotment 
of the Disproportionate Share (DSH) funds from the State.  For the year thus far, deductions from revenue are $1.9 MM under budget, 
primarily due to cost report settlements received earlier in the fiscal year, as well as the DSH monies received in March.  For the month, Bad 
debt expense was $1.6 million, higher than budget by $804,543.  This is primarily due to fully reserving all self‐pay accounts greater than 120 
days.  For the fiscal year to date, bad debt expense is $696,748 under budget.   
 
Other Operating Revenue for the month is under budget by $16,267, primarily due to the loss of the Wildflower Court food service contract.  
For the year, Other Operating Revenue is $1.0 MM over budget due to the receipt of an Electronic Health Record incentive of $898,281 in 
December. This payment was the result of Stage 1 Meaningful Use Attestation. 

 
Total Expenses were under budget for the month by 2.6% and slightly under budget for the year.  Notable variances were: 
 While Utilities expense was $185,158, over budget by 6.8%, the March expense was in line with the prior year amount of $181,927.  

Expenses related to Fuel Oil were $4,776 higher than prior year, which mainly accounts for the variance to prior year.   
 Depreciation is over budget by $30,501 as the FY14 budget did not include additional depreciation for projects placed in service at 

or soon after the end of FY13. 
 Interest expense is $56,244 over budget as the FY14 interest expense related to the Bond Defeasance was not known in time for 

inclusion in the budget.  This monthly variance will continue through June, 2014. 
 

From a cash receipts perspective, March was an excellent month, with total cash inflows of $9.5 million.  That included a strong month by 
the Patient Financial Services group, bringing in $6.3 million in cash ($1.1 million higher than February).  March also included the DSH 
payment (as indicated above) of $2.15 million, as well as a cost report settlement of $529,240. 
 
Operating cash was $24,448,635 as of March 31, 2014 and Days Cash on Hand was 142.  Net A/R Days was 76. 

Page 76 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 77 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 78 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 79 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 80 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Actual Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year  Budget
Inpatient:Patient Days
Patient Days ‐ Med/Surg 256 307 329 2,590 3,052 3,112
Patient Days ‐ Critical Care Unit 57 67 69 517 746 715
Avg. Daily Census ‐ Acute 10.10 12.06 12.84 11.34 13.81 13.97
Patient Days ‐ Obstetrics 62 75 98 710 689 891
Patient Days ‐ Nursery 67 52 63 598 561 557
Births 27 24 30 253 272 274
Patient Days ‐ Mental Health Unit 245 244 289 1,984 2,251 2,416
Avg. Daily Census ‐ MHU 7.90 7.87 9.32 7.24 8.19 8.82

Inpatient: Admissions
Med/Surg 66 70 74 596 679 672
Critical Care Unit 24 30 47 284 348 439
Obstetrics 26 32 31 295 298 310
Nursery 27 24 30 283 272 274
Mental Health Unit 29 28 38 278 270 315

Surgery:
Inpatient Surgery Cases 53 56 54 477 530 532
Same Day Surgery Cases 192 212 226 1,824 1,974 1,947
Total Surgery Cases 245 268 280 2,301 2,504 2,479
Total Surgery Minutes 18,171 16,398 19,205 154,255 169,823 170,039

Outpatient:
Total Outpatient Visits (Hospital)
Emergency Department Visits 1,208 1,147 1,201       10,598 11,004 10,704    
Cardiac Rehab Visits 41 30 30            309 245 283          
Lab Tests 6,818 7,380 8,848       67,820 69,350 79,429    
Radiology Procedures 2,198 2,115 2,191       18,747 19,810 20,248    
Sleep Studies 18 14 24            155 192 222          

Rain Forest Recovery:
Patient Days ‐ RRC 390 379 395          3,573 3,331 3,389       
Avg. Daily Census ‐ RRC 12.58 12.23 12.74 12.99 12.11 12.32
Outpatient visits 306 483 N/A 3,596 3,359 N/A

Physician Clinics:
Specialty Clinic Visits 675 672 685          4,696 5,491 5,243       

Other Operating Indicators:
Dietary Meals Served 12,544 21,706 20,553    174,846 180,822 181,666  
Laundry Pounds (Per 100) 306.87 311.74 316.67 2,612.20 2,848.49 2,850.00

Financial Indicators:
Revenue Per Adjusted Patient Day 5,588.63 4,932.65 5,634.21 6,512.44 5,137.18 5,567.21
Contractual Allowance % 15.54% 21.36% 26.84% 25.54% 22.74% 27.06%
Bad Debt & Charity Care % 19.34% 7.53% 9.15% 8.91% 10.42% 9.23%
Wages as a % of Net Revenue 31.41% 37.80% 35.79% 35.33% 36.25% 35.65%
Staff Hours Per Adjusted Patient Day 37.79 40.62 38.59 45.34 39.78 38.26
Overtime/Premium % of Productive 2.50% 4.55% 3.50% 2.50% 6.63% 3.50%
Days Cash on Hand 142 125 120 142 125 120
Days in Net Receivables 76 69 55 76 69 55

Facility Utilization:
CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

Bartlett Regional Hospital
Dashboard Report for March 2014

Page 81 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 82 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 83 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Cash Summary for March 2014

       Increase/(Decrease) in Cash

Current Month Year-To-Date

CASH RECEIPTS 9,839,405$      69,027,899$     

CASH DISBURSEMENTS:

Payroll (Net Pay) 1,695,173$      16,590,563$     

Accounts Payable 3,195,225$      32,495,740       

CBJ Cash Transactions 573,438$         

Capital Reserve Fund (471,681)$        

Total Cash Disbursements 4,992,155$      61,886,731$     

NET CHANGE IN CASH 4,847,251$      7,141,168$       

BEGINNING BALANCE 19,520,371$    62,319,864$     

NET CHANGE IN CASH 4,847,251 7,141,168

ENDING BALANCE - OPERATING CASH 24,367,621$    69,461,032$     

Board Designated Funds

Capital Reserve Fund 10,617,327$    
BRH CAMHU 2,500,000$      

Insurance Deductible Fund 125,764$         

Contributions 9,772$             

New Bond Debt Service Reserve 1,686,975$      

BRH Deposits 25,521$           

14,965,359$    

39,332,981$    

CBJ Appropriated Funds

CIP 484,920$         

CAMHU 5,000,000        

5,484,920$      

TOTAL CASH 44,817,901$    Page 84 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Operating Room 
Olympus Cameras 

$27,670.92 

Page 85 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Purchase vs. Repair of the Olympus OTV‐S7PROH‐HD‐LO8E 

This piece of equipment is a camera, used in laparoscopic and arthroscopic procedures.  This allows the 
surgeon to see inside a body cavity or joint during a procedure.  We currently have two cameras down 
and in need of repair or replacing.  The cost to replace the camera’s, which were purchased in February 
of 2010 and March of 2010, is $13,831.75 each for a total of $27,663.50.  The cost to repair the 
camera’s, is $10,365.00 each for a total of $20,730.00.  The camera’s need to be replaced or repaired as 
we are currently reprocessing camera’s in between cases, which will eventually lead to a delay between 
cases. We currently have one loaner camera.  Please be aware, beginning April 16th, 2014, we will be 
billed $1000.00 a month for up to 3 months while we have a loaner camera in place after 3 months we 
will be billed for the purchase price. 

 

Page 86 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 87 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 88 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 89 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 90 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 91 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 92 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Page 93 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

System 6 Sagittal Saw, Oscillating 
Saw and Drill 

Operating Room 
$24,273.24 

Page 94 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



The System 6 is our power (Sagittal Saw, Oscillating Saw, and Drill) used in Orthopedic cases.
We currently have one set completely down and is being sent out for repair. The other set has a 
malfunctioning Sagittal Saw; it will need to be sent out for repair as well.  The System 6 is used  
frequently and is often turned over between cases. The cost of a new System 6 is $24,273.24.  
This price includes a trade in credit of $999.97. 

Page 95 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Phone:(800) 253-3210    Fax:(269) 323-2887 CUSTOMER'S COPY

Jeff Woolcott Instruments

Kalamazoo, Michigan 49001
jeff.woolcott@stryker.com
1-907-250-0789  DATE: 04/09/2014
PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO:
 
BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITA (ACCOUNT 20045) We are pleased to submit our
3260 HOSPITAL DRIVE quotation on the following
JUNEAU, AK 99801 Stryker Instruments products.

EQUIPMENT
Item 
No. Part No. U/M Qty List Price Discount Sell Price Total

1 6203-126-000 EA 1 $3,351.44 58.94% $1,376.02 $1,376.02

2 6203-226-000 EA 1 $3,351.44 40.92% $1,980.00 $1,980.00

3 6203-131-000 EA 2 $2,827.03 58.96% $1,160.25 $2,320.50

4 6203-135-000 EA 1 $2,827.03 58.96% $1,160.25 $1,160.25

5 6203-110-000 EA 1 $2,827.03 58.96% $1,160.25 $1,160.25

6 6208-000-000 EA 1 $11,835.66 54.09% $5,434.00 $5,434.00

7 6206-000-000 EA 1 $11,835.66 54.09% $5,434.00 $5,434.00

8 6205-000-000 EA 1 $14,727.21 59.60% $5,950.00 $5,950.00

9 6102-454-000 EA 1 $998.88 54.13% $458.19 $458.19

Total List Price $57,408.42

Total Discount 55.98%

Equipment Total $25,273.21

Total List Price $57,408.42

Total Discount 55.98%

Subtotal $25,273.21

Trade In $999.97

Discount After Trade In 57.72%

Grand Total $24,273.24

Pricing does not include applicable taxes and shipping.

F.O.B.: Shipping Point

Prices: In effect for 60 days

Terms: Net 30 Days

Ask your Stryker Sales Rep about our flexible financing options.

SYS 6 STERILIZATION CASE

4100 E. Milham Avenue

Kalamazoo, MI 49001

Description

ADJ PIN COLLET 2.0-3.2mm

ADJ PIN COLLET 3.0-4.2mm

1/4" CHUCK W/KEY

Comments
Includes Stryker standard warranty on all parts, labor, and repairs. 

Please forward PO information to Jeff Woolcott via e-mail at 
jeff.woolcott@stryker.com

Thanks-

Jeff Woolcott
Stryker Surgical
907-250-0789

HUDSON/MODIFIED TRINKLE ATTACH

AO SMALL ATTACHMENT

SYSTEM 6 SAGITTAL SAW

SYS 6 RECIP

DUAL TRIGGER ROTARY

Page 96 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

McKesson PACS Project 
$164,224 

Page 97 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



McKesson PACS Architecture Project in the amount of $164,224: 
 
The McKesson PACS (Picture Archiving and Communication System) is used in our radiology 
department for image management and study workflow. The PACS equipment was purchased in 
2007 and is overdue for a refresh. The refresh was requested last year, but it was not approved. 
We have worked with McKesson and applied some credits to get very aggressive pricing. We 
especially need the ability to upgrade to version 12 and upgrade our servers for the following 
reasons: 
 

• With version 12, we can eliminate the technologist workstations. These workstations cost 
roughly $4000 each, and we have 16 stations. The stations are running Windows XP, 
which, as of April 8th, is no longer supported by Microsoft. Version 12 is web-based, so 
the tech workstations are no longer required. 

• We have had recent issues with freezing and slowness on the radiologist workstations. 
The refresh provides high performance radiologist workstations. 

• Diagnostic monitors would again be covered by warranty, currently they are not, and the 
monitors are qualified for Mammography workflow. 

• Servers are upgraded from Windows Server 2003 32bit to Windows Server 2008 R2 
64bit 

 
 

Page 98 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation Reference Number:
Quotation Date:
Quotation Expiry Date:
Quotation Revision Date:
Quote Description:
Facility Description:
 

McKesson Enterprise Medical Imaging Contact Information

General Switchboard Fax Contact Name
(800) 661-5885 (800) 261-5432 Diana Bradbury
(604) 279-5422 (604) 279-5468 604.279.5422 x7466

To confirm receipt of your fax, please email:  migsalescontracts@mckesson.com

- BUDGETARY QUOTATION -

Quotation For:

McKesson Radiology 12 Upgrade

Bartlett Regional Hospital

H14BAR001-07

The information in this document is confidential and the property of McKesson Technologies

Inc. It is intended for the sole use of the designated recipients and may not be transmitted to

other parties without prior permission from McKesson Technologies Inc.

The McKesson Radiology System is manufactured in Canada. Installation and Training

Services are provided by McKesson Enterprise Medical Imaging Company Ltd, based in

Richmond, BC, Canada.

Bartlett Regional Hospital

April 4, 2014
July 3, 2014
April 7, 2014

This quotation is for budgetary purposes only. A purchasable configuration can be
supplied based on a thorough site walkthrough of a customer site to confirm all
quantities and items required.

Page 99 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation: H14BAR001-07

Revision Date: April 7, 2014

Juneau, AK Quote Description:

McKesson 
Radiology 12 
Upgrade

99801 Facility Description:
Bartlett Regional 
Hospital

Customer No. 1010935 Contact Name: Diana Bradbury
Contact Number: 604.279.5422 x7466

 

Quotation Summary
Primary Quotation #H14BAR001-07 #

Third Party Software 2,814                
#

Equipment 113,364            
One Time quipment Discount (5,669)               
Net Equipment 107,695            

#
Implementation Services 58,250              
Implementation Services Discount (8,737)               
Education Services 12,000              
Education Services Discount (1,800)               
Freight 1,360                
Net Services 61,073              

#

Subtotal Primary Quotation 171,582$          

#

Test System Quotation #H14BAR001-07TS #
#

Equipment 7,400                
One Time Equipment Discount (370)                  
Net Equipment 7,030                

#
Implementation Services 1,000                
Professional Services Discount (150)                  
Freight 250                   
Net Services 1,100                
Subtotal Test System Quotation 8,130$              

#

#

Net Total 179,712$          

The pricing set forth in this proposal represents McKesson's complete proposal for the Products and or
Customer's Facilities set forth herein (the "Pricing Proposal"), regardless of other proposals made by McKesson
either simultaneously with this Pricing Proposal or otherwise regarding additional Products or Facilities that are
not set forth herein.

Bartlett Regional Hospital

3260 Hospital Drive

Page 100 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation: H14BAR001-07

3260 Hospital Drive Quote Description:
McKesson Radiology 
12 Upgrade

Juneau, AK Facility Description:
Bartlett Regional 
Hospital

99801  
Customer No. 1010935
  Contact Name: Diana Bradbury

Contact Number: 604.279.5422 x7466
Revision Date: April 7, 2014

 

ITEM

NO.
QTY

UNIT PRICE

Includes Applicable 

Discounts

TOTAL PRICE

Qty x Unit Price

#
Third Party Software

1 1 ORC101 72008210 1,758 1,758                       

2 1 ORC115 72016211 1,056 1,056                       

# 2,814                      

Equipment

3 2 WKS500DW7 80007461 2,313                       4,626                       

4 2 GDS520B 80001445 21,554                     43,108                     

5 2 ADI213DB 80006160 565                          1,130                       

6 2 WKS-MAMM-UPL 80007257 361                          722                          

7 1 CAL400 80001194 585                          585                          

8 1 NHA101D2K8x64 80005110 44,300                     44,300                     

9 1 NSD650D 80005371 13,224                     13,224                     

# 107,695                  

Implementation Services

Scope / Assumptions / Requirements

• This system does not include server racks or Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS); Customer must provide environment for McKesson-supplied 
physical servers.
• Requires new archive system.  Microsoft 2008 OS does not support tape archive
• Requires Powerscribe 360 1.0 or higher

- BUDGETARY QUOTATION -

• Requires MagView 6.0 or higher

Subtotal Third Party Software

Subtotal Equipment

PART NO.

• Sono Report and VOXAR are not supported by McKesson Radiology 12

D E S C R I P T I O N

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY STATION - DELL - STANDARD PLUS CHASSIS, WITHOUT SUPPORT 
TOOLS - RADIOLOGIST STATION

Workstation chassis, to be paired with video cards and displays 

To replace CDIRAD1, CDIRAD2

32GB Windows 7 workstation

The Customer is responsible for installation and support of all equipment and 3rd party software 
associated with this workstation. The customer may contract directly with the hardware vendors for 
ongoing hardware maintenance. 

BARCO DISPLAY CALIBRATION KIT

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY HIGH AVAILABILITY INTEGRATED SERVER - UP TO 200,000 EXAMS 
PER YEAR - DELL 

Equipment:  Dual servers in failover configuration to provide failover services in the event of single unit 
hardware failure. Windows Server license, Rack mountable servers, Gigabit ethernet adaptor, requires 
a copper Gigabit ethernet connection. UPS and Racks to be supplied by customer unless otherwise 
specified in this quotation.  

Requires 2x ORC101 Oracle Software License.

To replace BRH-HORIZON1/BRH-HORIZON2
(BRH-PACSARCH - to remain in production until tape archive is replaced)

NETWORK ATTACHED STORAGE - 19,000 GB - NL-SAS - DELL

Includes:  Network storage appliance with 19,000 GB usable space, 1000BaseT network connection. 
UPS and Racks to be supplied by customer unless otherwise specified in this quotation.     

To replace BRH-PACSNAS1
(Requires separate Professional Services data move quote)

DISPLAY SYSTEM: DUAL BARCO CORONIS 5MP / MFGD5421

21'' Greyscale 5 Mpixel Diagnostic Flat Panel with auto DICOM calibration, embedded front light 
sensor and protective glass. Approved by FDA for Mammography use. 
AUXILIARY DISPLAY SYSTEM: DELL U2412M

24" Colour 1920 x 1200 Desktop Flat Panel with Barco Display Controller 

ORACLE SOFTWARE LICENSE

Oracle Standard Edition ONE license for 1x CPU

ORACLE SOFTWARE LICENSE

Oracle Diagnostic Pack

Bartlett Regional Hospital

MCKESSON RAD STATION - MAMMO UPLIFT PACKAGE

Page 101 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation: H14BAR001-07

3260 Hospital Drive Quote Description:
McKesson Radiology 
12 Upgrade

Juneau, AK Facility Description:
Bartlett Regional 
Hospital

99801  
Customer No. 1010935
  Contact Name: Diana Bradbury

Contact Number: 604.279.5422 x7466
Revision Date: April 7, 2014

 

ITEM

NO.
QTY

UNIT PRICE

Includes Applicable 

Discounts

TOTAL PRICE

Qty x Unit Price

#

Scope / Assumptions / Requirements

• This system does not include server racks or Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS); Customer must provide environment for McKesson-supplied 
physical servers.
• Requires new archive system.  Microsoft 2008 OS does not support tape archive
• Requires Powerscribe 360 1.0 or higher

- BUDGETARY QUOTATION -

• Requires MagView 6.0 or higher

PART NO.

• Sono Report and VOXAR are not supported by McKesson Radiology 12

D E S C R I P T I O N

Bartlett Regional Hospital

10 1 SUP250 74041435 4,250                       4,250                       

11 1 UPG225 74041346 45,263                     45,263                     

12 1 TRN003 75006482 10,200                     10,200                     

13 1 FRE200 74007667 1,360                       1,360                       

#NAME? 61,073                    

#

Grand Total 171,582               
 # 
System Configuration Settings

(A) 1x ORC101 ORACLE SOFTWARE LICENSE

Oracle Standard Edition ONE license for 1x CPU

Third Party Software to be upgraded; Customer is paying for Third Party Software maintenance.

Subtotal Implementation Services

REMOTE SOFTWARE UPGRADE SERVICES - 40 OR LESS DEVICES - WEEKDAY

Remote upgrade services to be performed by McKesson Customer Support Staff.

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY SYSTEM REFRESH
Project management coordination of technical requirements and preparation.

Includes:
- Remote support for hardware & virtual hardware installation
- Remote Q/C and configuration of new servers
- Remote Q/C of new workstations

New Servers
- Redesign of configuration files for new architecture and recommendations on modality IP updates

DB Upgrade
- Remote upgrade of Oracle database server
- Remote upgrade of Oracle clients on all workstations and servers

SOFTWARE UPGRADE TRANSITION TRAINING - 2 DAYS

Includes: 2 consecutive days of on-site post-upgrade training on front-end application, may include 
McKesson Radiology and/or other McKesson applications. 

FREIGHT

Includes shipping and handling charges for shipment from McKesson to customer site

Page 102 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation: H14BAR001-07

3260 Hospital Drive Quote Description:
McKesson Radiology 
12 Upgrade

Juneau, AK Facility Description:
Bartlett Regional 
Hospital

99801  
Customer No. 1010935
  Contact Name: Diana Bradbury

Contact Number: 604.279.5422 x7466
Revision Date: April 7, 2014

 

ITEM

NO.
QTY

UNIT PRICE

Includes Applicable 

Discounts

TOTAL PRICE

Qty x Unit Price

#

Scope / Assumptions / Requirements

• This system does not include server racks or Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS); Customer must provide environment for McKesson-supplied 
physical servers.
• Requires new archive system.  Microsoft 2008 OS does not support tape archive
• Requires Powerscribe 360 1.0 or higher

- BUDGETARY QUOTATION -

• Requires MagView 6.0 or higher

PART NO.

• Sono Report and VOXAR are not supported by McKesson Radiology 12

D E S C R I P T I O N

Bartlett Regional Hospital

#

#NAME?

Please note that the design of the McKesson Radiology is sensitive to the underlying network bandwidth available.  In order to operate in accordance with the Documentation,  the proposed 

McKesson Radiology must be installed on a network that satisfies the following criteria:

- All existing or new structured cabling must conform to the Registered Category 5 standard; i.e. Category 5E (TIA 568A Addendum 3, March 1998) or Category 6 specification.

- All McKesson Radiology workstations require a switched 100BaseT network connection running at full-duplex mode. McKesson Radiology workstations cannot be connected using NAT (Network 

Address Translation),  the Internet, or through a firewall.

- All McKesson Radiology servers require a switched Copper Gigabit Ethernet port (1000BaseT) network connection.

- The McKesson Radiology Servers must be connected to a network fabric, or backbone, that is capable of providing a minimum of Gigabit Ethernet (1000Mbit/sec), or equivalent, aggregate 

throughput dedicated to McKesson Radiology network traffic to the switch fabric that feeds the McKesson Radiology workstations. 

- If the McKesson Radiology is interconnected to the hospital network, the image management system should be kept on a subnet, isolated from the primary network.

- All sites and locations that will have connectivity to the McKesson Radiology must be inside the facility's firewall. Locations outside the firewall will be unable to access McKesson Radiology. A wide 

area network connection must be provided between locations, campuses and buildings (high-speed connectivity recommended). 

- All McKesson Radiology (servers, workstations, NAS) should have reliable network connectivity to all other components of the PACS network; therefore, it is essential to have properly configured 

network routing between all primary and/or remote sites.  Network performance and latency times are the responsibility of the customer.  McKesson recommends network speed ping packet tests to 

be within round trip < 2 msec for in-house workstations and within round trip < 200 msec for remote workstations otherwise image access, file access or database access operations will 

correspondingly experience decrease in performance.  

Confidential and Proprietary to McKesson Technologies Inc

The pricing set forth in this proposal represents McKesson's complete proposal for the Products and or Customer's Facilities set forth herein (the "Pricing Proposal"), 

regardless of other proposals made by McKesson  either simultaneously with this Pricing Proposal or otherwise regarding additional Products or Facilities that are not set 

forth herein.

Page 103 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation: H14BAR001-07TS

3260 Hospital Drive Quote Description:
McKesson Radiology 
12 Upgrade

Juneau, AK Facility Description:
Bartlett Regional 
Hospital

99801
Customer No. 1010935
 Contact Name: Diana Bradbury

Contact Number: 604.279.5422 x7466
Revision Date: April 7, 2014

 

ITEM

NO.
QTY

UNIT PRICE

Includes Applicable 

Discounts

EXTENDED PRICE

#
Equipment

1 1 TST400D2K8x64 80004910 7,030                         7,030                         

# 7,030                         

Implementation Services

2 1 UPG225 74041346 850                            850                            

3 1 FRE210 74007667 250                            250                            

# 1,100                         

#
8,130                   

 #

System Configuration Settings

(A) 1x ORC110

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY TEST SYSTEM

PART NO.

- BUDGETARY QUOTATION -

D E S C R I P T I O N

REMOTE IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES

FREIGHT

Includes shipping and handling charges for shipment from McKesson to customer site

Subtotal Implementation Services

ORACLE SOFTWARE LICENSE

Oracle Standard Edition Named User license, 5 users

Third Party Software to be upgraded; Customer is paying for Third Party Software maintenance.

Grand Total #H14BAR001-07TS

Bartlett Regional Hospital

 

Subtotal Equipment

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY TEST SERVER - DELL

Hardware:  Windows Server license, Rack mountable server, Gigabit ethernet adaptor. UPS 
and Racks to be supplied by customer unless otherwise specified in this quotation.  

Requires ORC110 Oracle Software License

Server requires a copper Gigabit ethernet connection and a copper Gigabit switch.

Page 104 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Quotation:
3260 Hospital Drive Revision Date:

Juneau, AK Quote Description:

99801 Facility Description:
Customer No. 1010935 Contact Name: 

Contact Number: 

Maintenance Quotation Summary

Equipment Maintenance Not Provided -$                         

Oracle Maintenance 507$                    

H14BAR001-07 and …07TSBartlett Regional Hospital

Diana Bradbury
604.279.5422 x7466

 

McKesson Radiology 12 
Upgrade

Bartlett Regional Hospital

April 7, 2014

Page 105 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



H14BAR001-07

3260 Hospital Drive McKesson Radiology 12 Upgrade
Juneau, AK Bartlett Regional Hospital
99801

  
604.279.5422 x7466 -

ITEM 

NO.
QTY TOTAL PRICE

#
1 3 UPS100D 80000403 2,793                  

2 1 RCK200D 80000761 5,045                  

3 1 UPG180 74034199 11,900                

4 1 UPS100D 80000403 931                     

Revision Date:

OPTIONAL ITEMS - NOT INCLUDED IN SYSTEM PRICING

D E S C R I P T I O N 

Quotation:

Facility Description:
Quote Description:

RACK MOUNTABLE UPS

42U RACK AND RACK COMPONENTS - DELL

Includes:  A 42U rack with rack mountable LCD display, keyboard, mouse and KVM switch. 

INSTALLATION AND TRAINING CHARGED SEPARATELY

Bartlett Regional Hospital

MCKESSON RADIOLOGY UPGRADE ONSITE TRAVEL

Travel and onsite effort for Workstation deployment during go-live (servers to already be racked and 
staged by Customer).

RACK MOUNTABLE UPS

PART NO.

Diana Bradbury

April 7, 2014

Contact Name: 
Contact Number: 

Page 106 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
 
One Time Fees Summary

Quote Reference Product Facility
Professional

Services Net Price

2014-3401-1 Radiology Bartlett Regional Hospital 25,330.00 25,330.00

Totals 25,330.00 25,330.00

 
 
Recurring Annual Fees Summary

Quote Reference Product Facility
McKesson

Software
Third Party

Software Equipment
Total Annual
Maintenance

2014-3401-1 Radiology Bartlett Regional Hospital

Totals

 
All prices are stated in USD .

  

 
Archive Data Move 
 

Customer Bartlett Regional Hospital Address 3260 Hospital Dr

Siebel/Contract 1-1IN33Q Juneau, AK - 99801

Customer Number 1010935 Sales Rep Diana Bradbury

Quoted on 2/7/2014 Phone 60427954227466

Quote Number 2014-3401 Email diana.bradbury@mckesson.com

Quote Expiry 5/8/2014 Initial CS#
Initial CS Date

1-TKQ8V
12/27/2007

 
 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
A-1-1

 
Page 107 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
Quote #2014-3401-1          Summary By Item Radiology

Bartlett Regional Hospital

Unit
Price Extended Price

Recurring Fees
(Annual

Maintenance)

No. Qty Part SAP Maint Description Type List List Net List Net

1 1 PCS1123 74042056 NA

McKesson Radiology data
Rearchive to non-DICOM
Archive. 200K < Total Exams <=
400K. DICOM Images, Scan
Documents, Voice Clips and
Event logs moved to new archive
as stored without modification.
HMI version 11.8 or above PSVC 22,080.00 22,080.00 22,080.00

2 1 PCS1180 74042129 NA

McKesson Radiology data
retrieval from Non-Tape Archive.
Total Exams up to 50K. DICOM
Images, Scan Documents, Voice
Clips and Event logs moved to
new archive as stored without
modification. PSVC 3,250.00 3,250.00 3,250.00

TOTALS: 25,330.00 25,330.00

Extended Fees Recurring Fees

Summary by Type List Discount Net List Discount Net

Professional Services 25,330.00 0.00 25,330.00

Total: 25,330.00 25,330.00

 

Customer Bartlett Regional Hospital Address 3260 Hospital Dr

Siebel/Contract 1-1IN33Q Juneau, AK - 99801

Customer Number 1010935 Sales Rep Diana Bradbury

Quoted on 2/7/2014 Phone 60427954227466

Quote Number 2014-3401 Email diana.bradbury@mckesson.com

Quote Expiry 5/8/2014 Initial CS#
Initial CS Date

1-TKQ8V
12/27/2007

 

 

The pricing set forth in this proposal represents McKesson's complete proposal for the Products and or Customer's Facilities set forth herein (the "Pricing

Proposal"), regardless of other proposals made by McKesson either simultaneously with this Pricing Proposal or otherwise regarding additional Products or

Facilities that are not set forth herein.                                                                                                                                           
A-1-2

         

Page 108 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 

Bartlett Regional Hospital

Data Move
Item Qty Part SAP Description

1 1 PCS1123 74042056

McKesson Radiology data Rearchive to non-DICOM Archive. 200K < Total Exams <= 400K. DICOM Images,
Scan Documents, Voice Clips and Event logs moved to new archive as stored without modification. HMI
version 11.8 or above

2 1 PCS1180 74042129
McKesson Radiology data retrieval from Non-Tape Archive. Total Exams up to 50K. DICOM Images, Scan
Documents, Voice Clips and Event logs moved to new archive as stored without modification.

  

Customer Bartlett Regional Hospital Address 3260 Hospital Dr

Siebel/Contract 1-1IN33Q Juneau, AK - 99801

Customer Number 1010935 Sales Rep Diana Bradbury

Quoted on 2/7/2014 Phone 60427954227466

Quote Number 2014-3401 Email diana.bradbury@mckesson.com

Quote Expiry 5/8/2014 Initial CS#
Initial CS Date

1-TKQ8V
12/27/2007

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
A-1-3

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Page 109 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

NetApp Expansion Project  
$67,280 

Page 110 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



NetApp Storage Expansion & PACS Archive Migration in the amount of $67,280: 
 
We currently have NetApp in our environment, and we are looking to leverage this technology. 
The PACS image archive is end-of-life, it is no longer under warranty, and we will reach 
capacity in the next one to two months. When that happens, studies will be pushed to tape 
archive, which would then require a manual process of tape retrieval for a comparison study. 
This is a quality and workflow management concern. Migrating the archive system to the 
NetApp allows for an online, disk-based, storage model that is much more accessible and 
eliminates the consumable media tapes that cost roughly $5000 annually. 
 

Page 111 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Rev 12-28-2010

This Quote was prepared for: This Quote was prepared by :

  

No Manufacturer Part # Description Qty

Total List Price Discounted 

Price

Two shelves of 24x2TB SATA (96TB raw)

Premium maintenance with 4 hour parts replacement

1 DS424X-R6 2 $112,982.84 $41,950.00

2 X5526A-R6 Rackmount Kit,4-Post,Universal,R6 2
3 DS4246-0748-24A-QS-R6 DSK SHLF,24x2.0TB,7.2K,6G,QS 2
4 X800E-R6 Power Cable North America,R6 4
5 X6558-R6 Cable,SAS Cntlr-Shelf/Shelf-Shelf/HA,2m 4
6 X6561-R6 Cable,Ethernet,2m RJ45 CAT6 4
7 CS-O2-NOINSTALL-4HR-VA SupportEdge Premium 4hr Onsite, w/o Install,VA 2

Total Discounted Price $41,950.00

This Quote will Expire on: April 23, 2014

Customer P.O. Number

1. Please make PO out to NBS, please note this is a WSCA order Agreement Number B27170 on your PO
2. Freight is included, do not specify or pay for freight

April 9, 2014

Professional Services outside of normal work hours will be billed/consumed at time and a half.  All Professional Services must be used within 12 months 
of purchase.  Professional Services not used within 12 months will no longer be available.  If Trade-In discounts are offered, Client is required to have all 
equipment they are trading in returned to the manufacturer at Client's expense.  If quantities or items are changed, the pricing may change.   This quote 
represents hardware and software estimates only and is subject to technical review.  All hardware and software returns by Client, for any reason, may be 
subject to a 20% shipping and handling fee. Network Business Systems will return products on a best efforts basis.  Many hardware and software 
products may not be returned for any reason due to manufacturer return policies.  Most products after being opened are no longer returnable to the 
manufacturer.  Defective products are returned according to each manufacturer’s warranty policies.  

Please add to PO: "WSCA/NASPO NetApp Inc. MPA #  B27170"

Dick Jablonowski
Network Business Systems
3000 C Street, Suite 210
Anchorage AK, 99503
Phone 907-272-2888
Fax     907-272-7117

Mr. Peter Morrissette
Bartlett Regional Hospital
3260 Hospital Drive Juneau, AK 99801

pmorrissette@bartletthospital.org
(907) 796-8988

WSCA Product Quote

Page 112 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Fusion Dictation Upgrade Project 
 $19,614 

Page 113 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Fusion Dictation Upgrade Project in the amount of $19,614: 
 
Fusion is our dictation system. This may sound familiar, because it was an item that was 
requested and approved for fiscal year 2013. The software for the project was purchased in 
December, 2012; however, the hardware was never purchased. Discussions on outsourcing and 
other pending changes led to the project being placed on hold by Senior Leadership, and FY 
2013 ended without the hardware purchase. The Fusion system is well beyond end-of-life and is 
not supported. We cannot get replacement parts. Also, the current Fusion system runs on 
Windows XP. It is urgent that we remove Windows XP from our environment to mitigate 
potential risks to our data and our network. This capital request is for dual servers to allow for 
some redundancy and associated licensing.  
 
 

Page 114 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Electronic Medical Records 
Recommendations 

Page 115 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



BARTLETT REGIONAL HOSPITAL ADMINISTRATION’S EMR RECOMMENDATION 

In 2009, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH 
Act) changed the landscape of health care with $25.9B in incentives to promote and expand the 
adoption of health information technology.  In 2010 in an effort to take advantage incentive 
funds and avoid the future payment penalties to be assessed for failure to meet meaningful use 
levels I & II by 2015, Bartlett began the process of selecting a new health information system 
and electronic medical record (EMR). Over the course of the next two years, six systems were 
evaluated, one of which was keeping and upgrading the current Meditech Magic system. After 
an extensive process, the Bartlett team narrowed the decision to two superior products, 
Meditech 6.0 and Cerner Community Works. A steering committee, with the aid of a facilitator, 
chose Cerner by a narrow margin because of its strength as a clinical system. The Board of 
Directors approved this recommendation and the Cerner contract was signed in December 
2011. 

For various reasons, the Cerner project was delayed and ultimately defunded by the CBJ 
Assembly in May of 2013. Talks began with Cerner to renegotiate the contract and reconstruct 
the product into a more affordable solution for Bartlett Regional Hospital. Unfortunately, it 
soon became clear that the only way to reduce price was to remove key features that originally 
differentiated Cerner as the superior product. Some of the features sacrificed in this process 
included Auto-Pump programming, automated messaging, CareAware Vitals Link, and Care 
Management that allowed the integration of clinical 

and financial data. Other features, like the infection control module and CareMobile, were 
either removed or sunseted by Cerner.  Through the negotiation process the relationship 
deteriorated with Cerner to the point where they are no longer considered a viable option as a 
long term information system partner.

During this same timeframe, Meditech was rewriting, enhancing, and further developing their 
6.X product. The Meditech package, currently 6.1, is markedly better than when initially 
considered, and contains many of the important aspects that were felt to be lacking before. One 
significant addition is the standardized content that comes with the system. Examples include 
over 90 care plans, more than 600 assessments, over 150 order sets, and more than 60 physician 
templates. Further key clinical content includes 

specialty disease and surveillance  clinical panels. While delivering this best practice, 
standardized content, Meditech has maintained the ability to customize the system to meet our 
needs. The billing and revenue cycle has seen vast improvements since the 6.0 product was 
reviewed in 2011, and additional modules and redesigns are apparent across the system. 
Meditech is a true, enterprise-wide solution that is fully integrated. 

Another area that Meditech has improved is the prescriptive method for 

successful system builds and installations. Meditech requires the engagement of a Meditech 
Ready Implementation Partner to provide quality implementation consultants on-site for all 
phases of the project. A number of key consultants are provided including a project manager, a 

Page 116 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



physician advisor, a CPOE trainer, and several other implementation specialists. These people 
will work with the Bartlett team to ensure success. 

Meditech has not only improved their product, but they have also made it more affordable for 
hospitals our size. The current Meditech proposal is $4,117,369 and includes $895,000 for the 
implementation consultants. 

At its meeting in November 2013 the Board instructed management to work with the IT 
steering committee to pursue consensus from the various stakeholder groups for the Meditech 
6.1 recommendation.  Cornerstone Advisors Group was retained to provide IT subject matter 
expert knowledge and to facilitate the decision making process of the group.    The discussions 
over the course of three committee meetings included exploration of available IT solutions for 
BRH, implementation timelines, eligibility for meaningful use incentive dollars and associated 
timelines.   Cerner, Epic, Meditech 6.1 as well as remaining with Meditech Magic were all 
discussed.  The consensus and recommendation of the IT Steering Committee was to proceed 
with Meditech 6.1.  The committee agreed with managements recommendation that in order to 
move the project forward, we remove the ED system conversion from TSystem to Meditech 
from consideration until a future date when all other systems are fully implemented and further 
integration needs dictate that change. 

The recommendation of the IT Steering Committee was then brought to the Medical Staff 
meeting in April presented by Management and Cornerstone Advisors.  After the presentation 
and following a very productive discussion of meaningful use requirements and the associated 
impact to physician practice, the Members of the Medical Staff voted in favor of proceeding 
with Meditech 6.1 over remaining on Meditech Magic for Bartlett Regional Hospital. 

Should the Board accept the recommendations of Management, the IT Steering Committee, and 
the Medical Staff, and vote to proceed with Meditech 6.1, the next steps include: 

1. Negotiation and signing of the Contract with Meditech resulting in the setting of an 
implementation schedule to begin work. 

2. Chartering an IT Implementation Committee to oversee the system implementation. 

3. Extending a Request for Proposals and selection of eligible Meditech Ready 
Implementation Partners. The amount for his work currently in the proposal from Meditech 
is $895,000 which Cornerstone Advisors feels is "a bare bones proposal".   Management 
feels that this critical component needs to be further explored and facility implementation 
needs defined by the IT Implementation Committee through the RFP process.  It is 
expected that this number will approach $1.5M when needs are further defined bringing the 
total expenditure to $4.7M which has been developed into the 2014-2015 capital budget. 

 

Page 117 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Chief of Staff report 

Page 118 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Credentials Committee 
Hospital Privileges for Board of Director Staff Consideration 

Tuesday, April 1, 2014 12:15 p.m. – Robert F. Valliant Center Boardroom 
 
INTITIAL APPOINTMENT APPLICATIONS:  
Name      Category     Privileges In 
1. Janice R. Carrick, DO  Active Psychiatry, Child/Adolescent 

Psychiatry, and Chemical 
Dependency Detox 

 
Dr. Janice R. Carrick graduated from the Western University of Health Sciences in 1985.  Dr. 
Carrick is a physician for BRH MHU/BOPS. 
 
2. Charles S. Lee, MD Consulting Anesthesia 
 
Dr. Charles S. Lee graduated from the University of New Mexico School of Medicine in 1985.  Dr. 
Lee is a physician for Anesthesia Care Associates in Palmer, AK 
 
3. Jose C. Suarez, MD  Consulting  Oncology and Conscious Sedation 
 
Dr. Jose C. Suarez graduated from the Superior Institute of Medical Sciences - Havana Cuba in 
1992.  Dr. Suarez is a physician for Midnight Sun Oncology in Palmer, AK. 
 
 
REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATIONS:  
Name      Category     Privileges In 
1. Samuel L. Abbate, MD Consulting Endocrinology 
 
Dr. Samuel L. Abbate graduated from the University of IL at Chicago College of Medicine in 1984.  
Dr. Abbate is an endocrinologist for Adonai Diabetes & Endocrinology Center in Wasilla. 

 
2. Amy E. Dressel, MD   Active  Pediatrics and Newborn, Lumbar 

Puncture, Pediatric Resuscitation, 
UVC/UAC Insertion 

 
Dr. Amy E. Dressel graduated from the University of Colorado School of Medicine in 1996.  Dr. 
Dressel is a pediatrician for Glacier Pediatrics. 
 
3. Alvin J. Fineman, MD   Locum Psychiatry, Adolescent Psychiatry, and 

Chemical Dependency Detox 
 
Dr Alvin J. Fineman graduated from the Ruprecht-Karls-Universitat in 1977.  Dr Fineman is a 
physician for Locum Tenens.com. 

 
4. Alan S. Gross, MD   Associate Orthopedic Surgery and Flouroscopy 

 
Dr. Alan S. Gross graduated from the University of Washington School of Medicine in 1989.  Dr. 
Gross is an orthopedic surgeon for Petersburg Medical Center. 

 

Page 119 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



5. Peter B. Hulman, MD  Consulting Nephrology 
 
Dr. Peter B. Hulman graduated from the University of Texas Medical School at San Antonio in 
1983.  Dr. Hulman is a physician for Alaska Kidney Consultants. 

 
 
6. Lindy M. Jones, MD   Active  Family Medicine w/Obstetrics, Tubal 

Ligation, C-Section, D&C, 4th Degree 
Repair, Conscious Sedation, and 
Emergency Medicine and Flouroscopy 
(pending proof of training) 

 
Dr. Lindy M. Jones graduated from the University of Washington School of Medicine in 1987.  Dr. 
Jones is a family medicine physician for Valley Medical Care and an emergency medicine 
physician for the BRH Emergency Department. 
 
7. Paul Skan, MD  Active Anesthesia 

 
Dr. Paul M. Skan graduated from the University of CA at San Francisco School of Medicine in 
1985.  Dr. Skan is an anesthesiologist for Bartlett Regional Hospital. 
 

 
CLOSURE OF FILE:   
1. Charles Ivester, MD – (Telemedicine; The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
 
 
TELEMEDICINE:   
1. Shadi Battah, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
2. Matthew Berenson, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
3. Alexis Delgado, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
4. Lior Dolgonos, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
5. Javid Kamali, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
6. Edwin Lee, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
7. Marek Martynowicz, MD – (Pulmonary Associates; eICU) 
8. Ryan McGhan, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
9. Julian Rojas, MD - – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
10. Jose Zelaya, MD – (The Alaska Hospitalist Group; eICU) 
 

 

 
   Y:\Medical Staff\BOD\2014\2014 04 22 BOD Summary.doc 

Page 120 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

BOARD REPORTS 
Executive Committee Minutes 4/102014 
Quality Council Minutes 4/09/2014 
Planning Committee Minutes 4/11/2014 
Finance Committee Minutes 4/15/2014 

Page 121 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Bartlett Regional Hospital 
Executive Committee 

Minutes 
April 10, 2014 

 

Ms. Bomengen called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m. 

Attendance: Ms. Bomengen, Bob Storer, Nancy Davis, Mary Borthwick, Jeff Egbert, 
CEO,  Billy Gardner, CNO,  Mila Cosgrove, HR and Toni Petrie, Executive Assistant 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
Mr. Storer made a motion to approve the minutes. Ms. Davis seconded and they 
were approved.  
 
CBJ LAW DEPARTMENT PROJECTS 
BRH Projects that CBJ Law worked on during the month of March 2014 was reviewed.   
Ms. Thomas asked if we could get an update on Norcal on a quarterly basis.  Mr. Egbert 
said he would work with Sara Parker and provide quarterly updates with the Compliance 
report. It would be a confidential document.  

STANDING COMMITTEE AGENDAS  
The committee agendas were reviewed.  
Ms. Davis said at the Quality Committee meeting yesterday a Quality Council Charter 
was developed. Ms. Davis suggested that we might want to incorporate the Charter into 
the board bylaws.   

The Planning Committee agenda was reviewed. No changes were made. 

The Finance Committee agenda was reviewed – The Biennial and Capital Budget review 
will move to old business.  

A consent agenda for the next board meeting was reviewed and discussed as well as 
the standard agenda format. 

There are items that can be pulled off the consent agenda if a board members wishes to 
discuss it. 

Ms. Thomas asked to move the consent agenda forward for the next board 
meeting.  

Page 122 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


Mr. Storer said he sees value to adding time limits on each agenda item.   

Ms. Bomengen agreed, but she would like to move into that as we go forward while 
getting used to the consent agenda format. The committee likes the idea of going to a 
consent agenda to help tighten up the board meeting and to be able to adjourn at a 
reasonable time.  

Ms. Bomengen noted the CEO Selection Committee is no longer a standing committee 
so it should be removed from the Board agenda.   

Ms. Thomas would like to see CAMHU addressed at the upcoming board meeting. 
There will be budget recommendations by the CBJ Finance Committee on April 28th and 
may be a topic that will come up.  

The May calendar was reviewed. The Executive Committee meeting was moved to May 
9th at Noon.  

OLD BUSINESS 

IT Decision Framework – Mr. Egbert reported that the IT Steering Committee had a 
really good discussion. Mr. Egbert pulled the ER component from the EMR to keep T-
Systems.  The committee felt Meditech 6.1 was the way to go. He brought the 
recommendations to the Medical Staff meeting last week and they had a great 
discussion.  The Medical Staff voted (not unanimously but with no objections) in favor of 
Meditech 6.1.  Mr. Storer asked if there was a significant amount of support at that 
meeting and Mr. Egbert said yes it was a well-attended meeting.  

Ms. Bomengen asked if there were physician offices that had already signed on with 
Cerner. Mr. Egbert said there are only two practices and we are paying for that. 
Eventually, we will need to get modules that will talk to those clinics’ EMR’s.  

The committee renewed a proposal for implementation done by Cornerstone Advisors 
that was reviewed. 

Ms. Thomas sent an email to CBJ Law disclosing that she has a relative that works with 
a sub-contractor that works with Meditech. She is taking steps to make sure she has no 
conflicts that would require her to recuse herself from the decision making. 

Mr. Egbert said he is going to discuss an IT Steering Committee Charter with the 
Planning Committee tomorrow.  

Ms. Davis asked for a written proposal confirming the real numbers for the 
implementation.  

Mr. Storer said he would like to see a narrative that shows what got us to this decision. 

Page 123 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Ms. Thomas doesn’t feel we have made it clear that we have chosen Meditech to the full 
Board.  Ms. Borthwick would like it be known that not only is the Medical Staff in support 
of this, but there is broad support amongst hospital staff.  

Mr. Egbert asked Mr. Ryan to take a look at the IT Department’s structure. The 
committee received a recommendation to get an interim CIO from Cornerstone to help 
advise us with an IT Steering Committee. He also suggested an ongoing relationship 
with a consultant as a virtual CIO.  

Mr. Egbert also met with Amy Mead, Jane Sebens and Martha Palicka regarding Cerner.  

Assignments for 2014 goals – The Planning Committee asked the Executive Committee 
to make committee assignments for the years goals. 

The Board will have a strategic planning retreat on October 18th at the Shaible House 
and Dennis McMillian from The Foraker Group will attend. 

Physician employment agreement – Mr. Storer said he has an issue with the 
employment agreement that was recently approved at the Board for a part-time surgeon.  
He feels that we are a community hospital and our physicians should be in the 
community, not spending a half a year in another state. Mr. Storer would like to explore 
recruiting for a general surgeon sooner rather than later. 

Marine Passenger Fees – Ms. Thomas voiced her concern regarding the Marine 
Passenger Fees. She said we submitted a larger dollar amount then what we will be 
receiving. She wants to understand why our amount was reduced so significantly and 
why we didn’t comment on that. Next year if we are going to submit an amount we need 
to be able to support and argue it. Ms. Bomengen asked if there was a process that we 
could find out how they came up with the rationale. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Ordinance of the City and Borough of Juneau 2014-18 – The board was apprised of 
changes to CBJ Ordinance 44.05, Personnel Management Code.  44.05 is being 
changed to remove an exclusion for Bartlett Regional Hospital.  Moving forward, BRH 
will be fully subject to those provisions, the most significant of which is a requiring a 
personnel management system in compliance with the merit system of employment.  
Ms. Cosgrove pointed out that the ordinance provisions for the Hospital Administrator 
already require that personnel rules be adopted consistent with 44.05. The change 
eliminates the inconsistency between the two code provisions. 

Ms. Cosgrove asked the committee what would be helpful to have at the Board meeting 
regarding this.  The committee suggested getting all the attachments with bullet points 
for the full board. 

Page 124 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Alaska Hospital Mutual Aid Agreement – This document provides a logistical framework 
for acute care hospitals to exchange resources during a public health emergency or 
disaster. 

This was reviewed and approved by CBJ Law and the hospital attorney. Mr. Egbert said 
we renew this every year.  

Ms. Thomas made a MOTION to move this to the full board for approval. Mr. Storer 
seconded and it was approved.  
 
Class and Compensation study – Ms. Cosgrove brought a contract for Fox Lawson and 
associates, to do a class and compensation study of the hospital.  She said it didn’t have 
to go through the RFP process. They will give us a structure that we can look at 
regarding our current positions and refresh our market data we can make sure our 
positions are being paid appropriately. The cost is $52,000. Most of this can be done 
long distance so we will avoid paying extra travel costs. 
 
Ms. Thomas made a motion to move this to the finance committee. Ms. Davis 
seconded. Ms. Cosgrove said there is a meeting scheduled in May to get started. Ms. 
Cosgrove will supply bullet points for the Finance Committee. Motion passed. 

Mr. Storer made a motion to go into executive session at 7:35 p.m.  Ms. Davis 
seconded and it was approved.  
 
The committee came out of executive session at 8:05 p.m. and the meeting was 
adjourned.  
 

Page 125 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



Board Quality Quarterly Summit 
DRAFT Minutes 

Wednesday, April 9, 2014, 1200-1300 
 
Called to order:   at 1200 by Nancy Davis (BOD) 
Present: N. Davis (BOD), B. Rogers (QM), T. Duncan (QM), L. Bishop (Nursing), S. Parker (Risk Mgr.), K. Vermedal (QM), R. Free (Ancillary), Mark Johnson 

(BOD), M. Dunker (QM), U. Iha (Pharmacy), M. Borthwick (BOD), J. Egbert (CEO), B. Gardner (CNO), S. Free (QM) D. Bigge (QM)   
Excused/Absent:  K. Bomengen (BOD), S. Hunter-Joerns (Med Staff), B. Vanderbilt (Med Staff) 
Minutes:   March 12, 2014 minutes reviewed – approved as written 

 

ITEM DISCUSSION / ACTIVITY ACTION / RECOMMENDATION RESPONSIBILTY 
NEW BUSINESS 

None    
OLD BUSINESS 
Draft Quality Council Charter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UR/CM Plan  

Jeff recommends making a more generic statement about 
annual goals in the charter so that the charter does not 
require revision every year, but that the specific goals could 
be included in the Council’s annual work plan.  Nancy 
would like a member from Med/Staff to participate in the 
committee (of note, both Dr. Susan Hunter-Joerns and Dr. 
Burton Vanderbilt sit on this Council, but neither were 
present at today’s meeting).  
Nancy will bring the charter to the Executive Committee on 
April 10th for approval.  
 
Nancy inquired as to the many delays on the Council 
approving this Plan.  Bethany and Jeff clarified that the CMS 
changes to the two-midnight rule and ICD-10 
implementation were likely part of the delay in finalizing the 
plan.  Nancy would like to hear the plan; draft state is OK, 
but would like the presentation given in May. 

Board Quality Council Charter adoption 
approved by unanimous vote.  Nancy will 
present to BoD Executive Committee on 
4/10/14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tabled to May 14, 2014 
 

Resolved as 
Assigned. 
Nancy Davis 
4/10/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tabled. 
Betty Stidolph 
5/14/14 

STANDING REPORTS 
A. Safety, Risk, Regulatory 
Reporting 

i. Medication Safety Events 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ii. Occurrence Report Trends 

 
 
Ursula presented ongoing Medication Safety events. Ursula 
reviewed and explained the total errors and total doses 
dispensed in pharmacy and explained each occurrence.  Jeff 
suggested that Ursula follow a new format for reporting 
medication safety events, citing the incident, investigation 
findings, and action taken to correct the cause, as 
appropriate. 
 
Sara reported on Occurrence trends for March. Trends are 

 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 

 
 
Ongoing. 
Ursula Iha 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing. 

 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 

907.796.8900 www.bartletthospital.org 

 

Page 126 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

iii. Patient Complaints 
 
 
 

iv. Significant/Sentinel Events 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Quality Operations and    
Structure 

i. Regulatory Compliance 
Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

now reported using the RL Solutions system.  Sara is 
actively working with a Fall Prevention team on decreasing 
our number of inpatient falls, and she continues to monitor 
employee incidents. Per the Board request Sara broke out the 
falls into inpatient, outpatient, and visitor.  Not all 
occurrence reports involve adverse outcomes or errors, but 
are included in the report.  Sara continues to monitor all 
areas of occurrences.     
 
Sara reviewed specific patient complaints.  Sara monitors 
complaints and associated improvement actions, along with 
follow up to specific patients.  
 
Sara reviewed Sentinel and Significant events. There were 
no Sentinel events in the month of March.  Sara reviewed 
one significant event related to a HIPAA privacy breach.  
Appropriate actions were taken to address the breach and 
disclose to the affected parties.  There were no notable 
events to report. 
 
 
Bethany gave the regulatory compliance update: 
Compliance Committee has been on hold since January due 
to program restructure. Meetings will reconvene April 17th, 
2014. The program and Committee have been redesigned.  
Board reports will commence in June. 
 
College of American Pathologists survey expected prior to 
April 24th, 2014.  
 
Clinical Alarm Safety update; Risk Assessment process 
will begin in April/May 2014.  The Patient Safety 
Committee will initiate the process.  
 
The Joint Commission; next anticipated survey July 2015. 
We will start ramping tracer activity up this summer to 
identify deficient areas and correct them. Bethany to give 
updates at future Council meetings.  
 
State of AK Department of Behavioral Health (DBH) 
Regulation requiring third-party accreditation of behavior 
health residential treatment center goes into effect in April 
2015. Bethany has contended with DBH that BRH current 
TJC accreditation meets this standard.  State of AK Legal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 

Sara Parker 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 127 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
 
 

ii. Medical Staff Quality 
Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

iii. Bartlett Microsystems 
 
 
 
 
 
iv. Board Strategic Plan 

Quality Goals 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Advisor, Stacie Kraly is currently reviewing and will 
advocate for us with the DBH. 
 
Bethany gave the Medical Staff Quality Update 
MSQIC -  OPPE: recommending MIDAS Statit product to 
replace discontinued Press Ganey OPPE product. This is a 
long process and, once approved, we will need to rebuild the 
program and process. 
FPPE – no issues, proceeding per policy. 
PHWC – Referrals being addressed by Committee. No 
issues to report. 
 
Reducing Waste and Increasing Efficiency Spring 2014 
training currently taking place. Started in March; three 
sessions; last session for the Spring is April 11th.  Good 
projects and a good group of participants.   Next session will 
take place in the Fall. 
 
Bethany and Nancy spoke to the Quality goals.   
Updates noted since last report:  VTE order set revision 
completed; PI Team reviewing and addressing systems 
related to pneumonia antibiotic selection failures, including 
revising order set; Waste Reduction Workshop implemented 
in Spring 2014 and planned again for Fall 2014.  
Nancy asked for the committee to think about goals that the 
Board should consider in the October planning meeting. If 
there are areas in need of Board support, please bring to the 
next Board Quality Council meeting. 

 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 
 
 
 
 
Informational 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
None.     
ADJOURNMENT 
Next Meeting:  May 14, 2014 1200-1300 Submitted by:  Tamiko Duncan, QM 
Abbreviations Used:  BOD – Board of Directors; QM – Quality Management; RM – Risk Management; UR/CM – Utilization Review, Case Management; PI – Process 
Improvement; MSQIC- Medical Staff Quality; CMS – Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services; HIPAA – Health Information Portability and Accountability Act; DBH 
– Department of Behavioral Health; OPPE- Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation; FPPE- Focused Professional Practice Evaluation; PHWC – Physician Health and 
Wellness Committee; VTE – Venous Thromboembolism; PI – Process Improvement 
 

Page 128 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Planning Committee 
April 11, 2014 

Minutes 
 

Called to order at 12:11 p.m. 

Attendance:  Mark Johnson, Bob Storer, Mary Borthwick 

Staff attendance: Jeff Egbert, Billy Gardner and Toni Petrie  

Approval of the minutes – Ms. Borthwick made a motion to accept the minutes as 
presented. Mr. Storer seconded and they were approved. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

Planning Committee Charter - A draft Planning Committee Charter was reviewed. Mr. 
Egbert went through it in detail with the committee members.  

IT Steering Committee Charter – Mr. Egbert discussed putting together an IT Steering 
Committee Charter, outlining the work for the committee.  

Goals and assignments – The goals were reviewed. The Executive Committee made 
assignments for goals for the Finance Committee and the Planning Committee. Mr. 
Egbert recommended this document go to the full board for approval.  

Strategic updates – Mr. Egbert said that the old strategic plan needs to be updated.   

Southeast Radiation Oncology is renting space to some oncologists from Palmer.  They 
would be able to provide weekly patient visits. We currently contract with an oncologist 
from Seattle.   

Mr. Egbert is going to have meetings with each major physicians practice to discuss a 
possible hybrid model for the summer providing a hospitalist.  

Hospice – Mr. Egbert said the Board will need to look at the possibility of providing an in-
service hospice program.  Hospice and Homecare is not doing well financially.  Mr. 
Egbert said the Board might want to consider taking that over, including billing and 
staffing.  

ADJOURNED: 1:00 p.m. 

 

Page 129 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


 
3260 Hospital Drive, Juneau, Alaska 99801 907.796.8900

 www.bartletthospital.org 
 

Finance Committee 
April 15, 2014 

Minutes 
 

Attendance: Lauree Morton, Alex Malter, MD, Kristen Bomengen 

Absent: Linda Thomas 

Also in attendance: Jeff Egbert, Interim CEO; Billy Gardner, CNO, Alan Germany, 
CFO, Marise Knock, Controller, Kris Muller, Accounting Supervisor, Tami Lawson-
Churchill, PFS Director, Dawn Bailey, OR Director, Martha Palicka, IT Director and Toni 
Petrie, Executive Assistant 

Ms. Morton called the meeting to order at 5:16 p.m. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES – Dr. Malter made a MOTION to approve the minutes 
from the April 7, 2014 budget work session as amended and they were approved.  

Mr. Germany introduced Tami Lawson-Churchill as our new Patient Financial Services 
Director. Tami is now responsible for all billing and collections in the hospital. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Olympus OTV‐S7PROH‐HD‐LO8E 

This piece of equipment is a camera used in laparoscopic and arthroscopic procedures. 
We currently have two cameras down and in need of repair or replacing. The cost to 
replace the cameras, which were purchased in February of 2010 and March of 2010, is 
$13,831.75 each for a total of $27,663.50. The cost to repair the cameras is $10,365.00 
each for a total of $20,730.00. The cameras need to be replaced or repaired as we are 
currently reprocessing cameras in between cases, which will eventually lead to a delay 
between cases. We currently have one loaner camera. Beginning April 16th, 2014, we 
will be billed $1,000.00 a month for up to 3 months while we have a loaner camera in 
place and after 3 months we will be billed the purchase price. 

System 6 

The System 6 is our power (Sagittal Saw, Oscillating Saw, and Drill) used in Orthopedics 
cases. We currently have one set completely down and is being sent out for repair. The 
other set is malfunctioning and it will need to be sent out for repair as well. The System 6 
is used frequently. The cost of a new System 6 is $24,273.24; this price includes a 
$999.97 trade in credit for two pieces we do not use in our current sets. With the 

Page 130 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.bartletthospital.org/


potential of 2 cases going at the same time requiring a System 6, it would be the safe 
thing to do to have a third one in case one goes down during the case.  

The Finance Committee recommended approval of these items to the full board.  

McKesson PACS Architecture Project in the amount of $164,224: 

The McKesson PACS (Picture Archiving and Communication System) is used in our 
radiology department for image management and study workflow. The PACS equipment 
was purchased in 2007 and is overdue for a refresh. The refresh was requested last 
year, but it was not approved. We have worked with McKesson and applied some credits 
to get very aggressive pricing. We especially need the ability to upgrade to version 12 
and upgrade our servers for the following reasons: 

• With version 12, we can eliminate the technologist workstations. These 

 workstations cost roughly $4000 each, and we have 16 stations. The stations are 
 running Windows XP, which, as of April 8th, is no longer supported by Microsoft. 
 Version 12 is web-based, so the tech workstations are no longer required. 

• We have had recent issues with freezing and slowness on the radiologist 

 workstations. The refresh provides high performance radiologist workstations. 

• Diagnostic monitors would again be covered by warranty, currently they are not, 

 and the monitors are qualified for Mammography workflow. 

• Servers are upgraded from Windows Server 2003 32bit to Windows Server 2008 

 R2 64bit 

NetApp Storage Expansion & PACS Archive Migration in the amount of $67,280: 

We currently have NetApp in our environment, and we are looking to leverage this 
technology. The PACS image archive is end-of-life, it is no longer under warranty, and 
we will reach capacity in the next one to two months. When that happens, studies will be 
pushed to a tape archive, which would then require a manual process of tape retrieval 
for a comparison study. This is a quality and workflow management concern. Migrating 
the archive system to the NetApp allows for an online, disk-based, storage model that is 
much more accessible and eliminates the consumable media tapes that cost roughly 
$5,000 annually. 

Fusion Dictation Upgrade Project in the amount of $19,614: 

Fusion is our dictation system. This item that was requested and approved for fiscal year 
2013. The software for the project was purchased in December, 2012; however, the 
hardware was never purchased. Discussions on outsourcing and other pending changes 
led to the project being placed on hold by Senior Leadership, and FY 2013 ended 
without the hardware purchase. The Fusion system is well beyond end-of-life and is not 

Page 131 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



supported. We cannot get replacement parts. Also, the current Fusion system runs on 
Windows XP. It is urgent that we remove Windows XP from our environment to mitigate 
potential risks to our data and our network. This capital request is for dual servers to 
allow for some redundancy and associated licensing.  

Ms. Bomengen asked what was included in our capital budget and what we might have 
to substitute in order to buy these items.  Mr. Germany said we have adequate cash flow 
to cover these items and nothing will be substituted.  By next month the capital items 
report will be updated and it will show what items we are not going to purchase.  

The Finance Committee recommended approval of these items to the full board.  

CAMHU – Ms. Morton spoke with Jeff Jesse at Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. 

He’s still positive about the project and was waiting for the new leadership to get in place 

at BRH before exploring any further. They will get together next week and talk more 
about this. He still sees it as viable, but was concerned about the initial cost.  

Fox Lawson and Associates agreement – Ms. Cosgrove said they will give us a 

structure that we can go to and look at for our current positions, develop a pay plan and 
conduct a market study to make sure our positions are being paid appropriately. The 
cost is $52,000. The start date will be the week of May 26th.  

The Finance Committee recommended approval of these items to the full board.  

NEW BUSINESS: 

The March 2014 financials were reviewed. See attached. 

The Finance Committee approved the March financials statements. 

FY15 BUDGET: 

The FY15 Budget was reviewed. Ms. Morton indicated she appreciated the 
comprehensive nature of the document.  Mr. Germany discussed some of the more 
material line items. 

• Assumptions 

• Income Statement – Baseline Scenario 

• Income Statement – Scenario A (3% rate increase) 

• Income Statement – Scenario B (4% rate increase) 

• Income Statement – Scenario C (5% rate increase) 

• Financial Ratios for Income Statements & FY15 Scenarios 
• Cash Flow Projection for FY15 Budget 
• Benefits Detail 

Page 132 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



• A list of budget justification for new requested positions. They were; 
1. ED registrar 
2. Physical Therapist 
3. Chargemaster reporting analyst 
4. Pharmacist 
5. Coding manager 
6. Financial analyst  
 

Mr. Germany will be supplying a staffing productivity report in the future finance packets.  

Mr. Germany and Mr. Egbert are recommending a 5% rate increase.  

Ms. Bomengen asked to have other Alaska hospital pricing comparisons that were 
reviewed at a prior budget work meeting included for review in the board packet.  

Ms. Bomengen asked Mr. Egbert and Mr. Germany if they could put together some 
information on what we are doing to contain healthcare costs. 

There was significant discussion around the level of rate increase that will be most 
appropriate in the FY15 budget.  

Dr. Malter made a MOTION to recommend a 4% rate increase for FY15 to the full 
board for approval. Ms. Bomengen seconded for the purpose of discussion. The 
motion passed by a roll call of two in favor and one against.  

Adjourned at 7:30 p.m.  

Page 133 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



A City and Borough of Juneau 
Enterprise Fund 

Conflict of Interest Policy 

Page 134 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet



VII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

The CBJ has a Conflict of Interest Code, which applies to members of all boards as well as 
the Assembly and CBJ employees.  Code section 01.45 provides that any board member 
who has a conflict of interest with regard to a matter under consideration by the body on 
which he or she serves must make a disclosure on the public record and ask to be excused 
from the discussion and official action on the matter.  A board member with a conflict of 
interest shall not deliberate or vote on any matter in which he or she has a conflict. There are 
criminal penalties for violations of this ordinance. 

 
01.45.100 Disclosures of conflicts by municipal officers other than employees. 
 
(a)    A municipal officer other than an employee, who is involved in a matter that may 

result in a violation of sections 01.45.010--01.45.080 shall disclose  the  matter  on  
the  public  record  and  ask  to  be  excused  from  the discussion and official action 
on that matter. The presiding officer shall determine whether the member's 
involvement would violate sections 01.45.010--01.45.080. If the presiding officer 
determines that a violation would exist if the member continues to participate, the 
member shall refrain from voting, deliberating, or participating in the matter. The 
presiding officer's decision may be overridden by a majority vote of the body. 

 
(b) An Assembly member, School Board member, or a member of any board or 

commission shall, whenever practical, request guidance, which may 
include a written advisory opinion, from the City and Borough Attorney when 
determining whether a member is involved in a matter that may result in a 
violation of sections 01.45.010--01.45.080. (Serial No. 91-04, § 2, 1991) Cross 
References: Manager, CBJ Code ch. 03.05; departments, CBJ Code ch. 03.10. 
 

The full Conflict of Interest Code is quite extensive, to review the full text of the Conflict 
of Interest Code please go online to the CBJ Law Department website at 
http://www.juneau.org/law/code/code.php. If a board member has a question on whether 
or not a conflict exists, they are encouraged to contact the City Attorney at 586-5242 for 
confidential advice on this issue. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135 04 22 2014 Board of Directors packet

http://www.juneau.org/law/code/code.php

	FOX LAWSON FACESHEET.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	OP Cameras facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	OR System 6 facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	net app facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Fusion dictation facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	BOD minutes facesheet portrait.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Strategic Goals 2014 01.pdf
	Sheet1

	Board Quality Council Charter FINAL 040914.pdf
	Scope
	Responsibilities
	Meetings
	Membership
	Confidentiality / Executive Sessions The rules governing Executive Sessions for the Board of Directors will apply to this Council (see Attachment A, Board of Director Bylaws, Executive Sessions).  Members of the public will be required to leave during...
	The rules governing protected health information (PHI) will apply to this Council.  Patient-specific information will be kept confidential and in compliance with HIPAA regulations.  Discussions which require disclosure of PHI will be closed to the pub...
	The Board Quality Council may, as occasion requires, function as a review organization under AS.18.23.030 and AS.18.23.070 (see Attachment B).  When acting as a review organization, discussions will be closed to the public.  Only Board members, health...
	Reports

	AK Mutual Aid facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Quality facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Goals facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	McKesson facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	COS report facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	EMR facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	BOARD reports facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	conflict of interest facesheet.pdf
	Slide Number 1




